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Dear Fellow Stockholders, 

In Greek mythology, the phoenix is a symbol of new life rising from the ashes of what came before.  
At Centrue, when we look back on our finish to 2012 and now at what’s ahead of us in 2013, it is 
clear that we are experiencing our own rebirth of sorts.  We’re doing more than simply recognizing 
our issues, or even resolving them.  We’re rising above them.   

Without question, 2012 was not without its challenges.  The economy remained weak, the regulatory 
environment difficult.  Low interest rates and fierce competition for a limited pool of new credits led 
to a compressed net interest margin and limited opportunities for new business.  Despite this uphill 
battle, we showed improvement on several key fronts and narrowed our operating loss when 
compared to the prior few years.    

Asset quality, a primary catalyst to our struggles, continued to show improvement and, after a 
protracted period of contraction in our loan portfolio, we saw our loan portfolio stabilize the last 
three quarters of the year primarily due to continued investments in our sales force. With a unified 
management team at the helm, we saw a rise in core deposits, Bank capital ratios and core earnings.   

Perhaps most importantly, we recommitted to doing what we know best.  Quite simply, we are a 
community bank and we cannot lose sight of the fact that taking care of our customers is priority 
number one.    Whether through deepening relationships with our existing customers or seeking out 
new ones, the key to our success rests solely in the hands of those we serve.   So, we will continue to 
work each day to anticipate their needs and give them the financial peace of mind they have come to 
expect while remaining good stewards of those communities we serve. 

Looking back at a year defined by such progress, we would be remiss not to acknowledge the hard 
work, sacrifices and loyalty of our dedicated employee base.  Through all of our ups and downs, our 
employees have been challenged to work more efficiently, control expenses and embrace the rapidly 
changing model of community banking.  They have risen to the occasion with a positive attitude and 
a true sense of teamwork and, for that, we commend them.      

In short, the last few years have been quite a journey for our customers, communities, employees and 
investors.  While there is still much work to do, it seems clear that 2012 will be remembered as a 
watershed period in which the organization began to distance itself from the challenges of the past 
few years and begin its ascent toward a more promising future. 

Best wishes, 

Dennis J. McDonnell      Kurt R. Stevenson 
Chairman of the Board      President & CEO 
Centrue Financial Corporation             Centrue Financial Corporation  
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March 22, 2013 

Dear Fellow Stockholder: 

You are cordially invited to attend Centrue Financial Corporation’s annual meeting of stockholders at the Hilton 
Chicago O’Hare Airport, O’Hare International Airport, Chicago, Illinois, on Wednesday, April 24, 2013, at 8:00 
a.m. local time.  

Your board of directors has nominated three persons to serve as Class III directors on the board of directors.  Their 
names appear in the enclosed proxy materials.  All three of the nominees are incumbent directors.  The board of 
directors recommends that you vote your shares for each of the nominees.  

You are welcome to attend the meeting in person.  Because it is important that your shares be represented at the 
meeting, please sign and return the enclosed proxy, whether or not you plan to attend the meeting.  This will save us 
additional expense in soliciting proxies and will ensure that your shares are represented at the meeting. 

A copy of our annual report to stockholders for 2012 is also enclosed.  Thank you for your attention to this 
important matter. 

Very truly yours, 

       
Kurt R. Stevenson 
President and  
Chief Executive Officer 

 



NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 
  TO BE HELD APRIL 24, 2013  

TO HOLDERS OF COMMON STOCK:

The annual meeting of stockholders of Centrue Financial Corporation, a Delaware corporation, will be held at the 
Hilton Chicago O’Hare Airport, O’Hare International Airport, Chicago, Illinois, on Wednesday, April 24, 2013, at 
8:00 a.m. local time, for the purpose of considering and voting upon the following matters: 

1. To elect three Class III directors and two Class C directors. 

2. To consider an advisory (non-binding) vote ratifying the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP as 
our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013. 

3. To take action with respect to any other matters that may be properly brought before the meeting 
and that might be considered by the stockholders of a Delaware corporation at their annual 
meeting. 

We are not aware of any other business to come before the meeting.  Only those stockholders of record as of the 
close of business on March 1, 2013, shall be entitled to notice of the meeting and to vote at the meeting and any 
adjournments or postponements of the meeting.  In the event there are not sufficient votes for a quorum or to 
approve or ratify any of the foregoing proposals at the time of the meeting, the meeting may be adjourned or 
postponed in order to permit our further solicitation of proxies. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
       

Kurt R. Stevenson 
President and  
Chief Executive Officer 

St. Louis, Missouri 
March 22, 2013 

PLEASE SIGN AND DATE THE ENCLOSED PROXY AND RETURN IT IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE AS 
PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE, WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON.  YOUR 
VOTE IS IMPORTANT TO ENSURE THAT A MAJORITY OF THE STOCK IS REPRESENTED.  YOU ARE 
WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING, AND IF YOU DO YOU MAY VOTE YOUR STOCK IN PERSON IF YOU 
WISH.  IF YOU LATER FIND THAT YOU MAY BE PRESENT AT THE MEETING OR FOR ANY OTHER REASON 
DESIRE TO REVOKE YOUR PROXY, YOU MAY DO SO AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO ITS EXERCISE.  
STOCKHOLDERS HOLDING SHARES IN BROKERAGE ACCOUNTS (“STREET NAME” HOLDERS) WHO WISH 
TO VOTE AT THE MEETING WILL NEED TO OBTAIN A PROXY FROM THE INSTITUTION THAT HOLDS 
THEIR SHARES.

 



PROXY STATEMENT 

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation by the board of directors of Centrue Financial 
Corporation of proxies to be voted at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held at the Hilton Chicago O’Hare 
Airport, O’Hare International Airport, Chicago, Illinois, on Wednesday, April 24, 2013, at 8:00 a.m., local time, or 
at any adjournments or postponements of the meeting. 

Centrue Financial Corporation, a Delaware corporation, is a regional financial services company based in St. Louis, 
Missouri which has one bank subsidiary. Our offices serve a market area which extends from the far western and 
southern suburbs of the Chicago metropolitan area across Central and Northern Illinois down to the metropolitan St. 
Louis area.  

This proxy statement and the accompanying notice of meeting and proxy are first being mailed to holders of shares 
of our common stock, par value $1.00 per share, on or about March 22, 2013 to stockholders of record as of March 
1, 2013.  We have also mailed to holders of shares of our common stock the December 31, 2012 annual report. 
Please note that under the terms of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, no par value per share (the “Series A 
Preferred”), the holders of our outstanding Series A Preferred vote with the holders of our common stock on an as if 
converted basis, and that under the terms of our Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series C (the 
“Series C Preferred”), the holders of our Series C Preferred have the right to elect two directors..  This proxy 
statement and our annual report will also be delivered to the holders of our Series A Preferred and our Series C 
Preferred. 

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholder Meeting 

The proxy statement and annual report to security holders are available in the investor relations section of our 
website at www.centrue.com.

Voting Rights and Proxy Information 

The board of directors has fixed the close of business on March 1, 2013, as the record date for the determination of 
stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the annual meeting.  Our transfer books will not be closed between 
the record date and the date of the annual meeting.  The board of directors hopes that all stockholders can be 
represented at the annual meeting.  Whether or not you expect to be present, please sign and return your proxy in the 
enclosed self-addressed, stamped envelope.  Stockholders giving proxies retain the right to revoke them at any time 
before they are voted by written notice of revocation to the secretary of Centrue Financial Corporation and 
stockholders present at the meeting may revoke their proxy and vote in person. 

The shares represented by each valid proxy received in time will be voted at the annual meeting and, if a choice is 
specified on the proxy, it will be voted in accordance with that specification.  If no instructions are specified in a 
signed proxy returned to the company, the shares represented thereby will be voted FOR the election of the directors 
listed in the enclosed proxy and FOR approval of the independent auditors.  If any other matters are properly 
presented at the annual meeting, including, among other things, consideration of a motion to adjourn the meeting to 
another time or place, the individuals named as proxies and acting thereunder will have the authority to vote on 
those matters according to their best judgment to the same extent as the person delivering the proxy would be 
entitled to vote.  If the annual meeting is adjourned or postponed, a proxy will remain valid and may be voted at the 
adjourned or postponed meeting.  As of the date of printing of this proxy statement, we do not know of any other 
matters that are to be presented at the annual meeting other than the election of three Class III directors, ratification 
of the company’s independent auditors and the election of two Class C directors by the holders of our Series C 
Preferred. 
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Stockholders giving proxies retain the right to revoke them at any time before they are voted by written notice of 
revocation to the secretary of Centrue Financial Corporation or by a later executed proxy.  Attendance at the annual 
meeting will not automatically revoke a proxy, but a stockholder attending the annual meeting may request a ballot 
and vote in person, thereby revoking a prior granted proxy.   

On March 1, 2013, we had 6,063,441 issued and outstanding shares of common stock, and 2,762 issued and 
outstanding shares of Series A Preferred, which shares of Series A Preferred are convertible into 172,042 shares of 
common stock.  For purposes of the voting requirements described below and throughout this proxy statement, 
references to “common stock” means outstanding common stock and the shares of common stock into which the 
Series A Preferred may be converted.  For the election of directors, and for all other matters to be voted upon at the 
annual meeting, each share of common stock is entitled to one vote.  A majority of the outstanding shares of the 
common stock must be present in person or represented by proxy to constitute a quorum for purposes of the annual 
meeting.  Abstentions and broker non-votes (i.e., shares held by brokers in street name, voting on certain matters due 
to discretionary authority or instructions from the beneficial owners but not voting on other matters due to lack of 
authority to vote on such matters without instructions from the beneficial owner) will be counted for purposes of 
determining a quorum.  Broker non-votes will not count toward the determination of whether such matters are 
approved or directors are elected.  Abstentions do not affect the election of directors but have the same effect as a 
negative vote on all other matters.  Other than the Class C directors, who are elected by the holders of Series C 
Preferred, directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes present in person or represented by proxy at the 
meeting and entitled to vote.  In all other matters, the affirmative vote of the majority of shares of common stock 
present in person or represented by proxy at the annual meeting and entitled to vote on the subject matter shall be 
required to constitute stockholder approval.   

On March 1, 2013, we had 32,668 issued and outstanding shares of Series C Preferred.  Each share of Series C 
Preferred is entitled to one vote for the election of Class C Directors.  We have been advised that the U.S. Treasury, 
as the sole holder of the Series C Preferred, will deliver a proxy voting in favor of the election of each of Dennis O. 
Battles and Richard C. Peterson, the current Class C directors, to another annual term as director. 

I. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

We have a staggered board of directors, divided into four classes.  Three classes are elected by the common 
stockholders.  One class of directors is elected by the holders of Series C Preferred.  With regard to the classes 
elected by common stockholders, one class is elected annually to serve for three years.  The U. S. Treasury, as 
holder of our Series C Preferred, is entitled to elect up to two Class C directors on an annual basis.  At the annual 
meeting, holders of our common stock and Series A Preferred, voting as a single class, will be entitled to elect three 
Class III directors for terms of three years or until their successors are elected and qualified; and the U.S. Treasury, 
as the sole holder of our Series C Preferred, will be entitled to elect two Class C directors for terms of one year or 
until their respective successors shall have been duly elected and qualified.  Each of the nominees for election as 
Class III and Class C directors are incumbent directors.   

The proxy for holders of shares of common stock and Series A Preferred provides instructions for voting for all 
director nominees or for withholding authority to vote for one or more director nominees. Unless instructed to the 
contrary, the persons acting under the proxy which we are soliciting will vote for the nominees listed below.  In the 
event, however, that any nominee shall be unable to serve, which is not now contemplated, the proxy holders reserve 
the right to vote at the annual meeting for a substitute nominee. 
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Information About Directors and Nominees

Set forth below is information, current as of March 1, 2013, concerning the nominees for election and for the other 
directors whose terms of office will continue after the meeting, including the age, year first elected a director and 
business experience of each during the previous five years, and the specific factors that led the board to conclude 
that the person should serve as a director.  When identifying nominees for directors, the corporate governance and 
nominating committee seeks members from diverse professional backgrounds who combine a broad spectrum of 
experience and expertise with a reputation for integrity. After reviewing the particular experience, qualification and 
skills of each nominee and director, the board concluded that each individual is qualified to serve as a director.  
Unless otherwise indicated, each person has held the positions shown for at least five years.  The two Class C 
director nominees to be elected by the holders of Series C Preferred will serve for one year terms, expiring in 2014.  
The three nominees to be voted upon by the holders of common stock and holders of Series A Preferred, if elected at 
the annual meeting, will serve as Class III directors for three-year terms, expiring in 2016.  We recommend that 
you vote your shares FOR all three Class III director nominees. 

Name 
(Age) 

NOMINEES 

Position with Centrue Financial Corporation 
and Principal Occupation 

Class III 
(term expires 2016) 

Mark L. Smith 
(63) 
Director since 2006

Director of Centrue Financial Corporation and Centrue Bank. 
CPA/Shareholder, Smith, Koelling, Dykstra & Ohm, P.C.; managing member 
of Solutions for Wealth Management, LLC and member of North Convent, 
LLC.  As a Certified Public Accountant and business owner, Mr. Smith’s 
professional qualifications meet the Securities and Exchange Commission’s 
(the “SEC’s”) definition of a “financial expert,” while his local roots in one of 
the company’s key market areas provide him with a unique perspective on 
business development efforts. 

Kurt R. Stevenson 
(46) 
Director since 2011

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Centrue Financial 
Corporation and Centrue Bank.  As the CEO of the Company, Mr. 
Stevenson’s qualifications and experience includes nearly 25 years of 
progressive experience with the company.  As the liaison between the board 
and management, Mr. Stevenson’s leadership role within the organization 
allows him to provide the board with critical insight and perspective on key 
strategic business initiatives. 

Scott C. Sullivan 
(58) 
Director since 1996 

Director of Centrue Financial Corporation and Centrue Bank. 
Attorney/Partner, Williams McCarthy LLP.  As a licensed attorney and 
partner in an Illinois law firm, Mr. Sullivan’s professional qualifications and 
expertise in corporate law and commercial litigation allow him to provide 
important insight on complex company matters and to provide valuable 
guidance to the board and management. 
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Name 
(Age) 

CONTINUING DIRECTORS 

Position with Centrue Financial Corporation 
and Principal Occupation 

Class I 
(term expires 2014) 

Walter E. Breipohl 
(59) 
Director since 1993

Director of Centrue Financial Corporation and Centrue Bank.  Owner, Walter 
E. Breipohl & Company.  As a licensed real estate broker and business 
owner, Mr. Breipohl’s professional qualifications make him a valuable 
resource for the company’s credit activities, while his local roots in one of the 
company’s key market areas provide him with a unique perspective on 
business development efforts. 

Randall E. Ganim 
(59) 
Director since 2006 

Director of Centrue Financial Corporation and Centrue Bank.  CPA/Partner, 
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP; formerly CPA/President/Principal, Ganim, Meder, 
Childers & Hoering, P.C.  As a Certified Public Accountant and business 
owner, Mr. Ganim’s professional qualifications meet the Securities and 
Exchange Commission’s (the “SEC’s”) definition of a “financial expert,” 
while his local roots in one of the company’s key market areas provide him 
with a unique perspective on business development efforts. 

Class II 
(term expires 2015) 

Dennis J. McDonnell  
(70) 
Director since 2000 

Director and Chairman of the Board of Centrue Financial Corporation and 
Centrue Bank. Chairman, McDonnell Investment Management, LLC.  With 
more than 40 years of investment industry experience, Mr. McDonnell’s 
qualifications and experience includes significant executive leadership in the 
asset management and financial services industries and allow him to provide 
critical insight and guidance on the company’s highest level strategic business 
decisions.

John A. Shinkle  
(61) 
Director since 1997 

Director of Centrue Financial Corporation and Centrue Bank.  Senior Vice 
President, Stifel Nicolaus & Company, Inc.; formerly Executive Vice 
President and Director, Synovus Securities, Inc.  Mr. Shinkle’s professional 
qualifications and experience with securities brokerage, investment banking, 
trading and investment advisory services allow him to provide important 
insight on various aspects of the company’s investment and business 
strategies.
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Name 
(Age) 

CONTINUING DIRECTORS 

Position with Centrue Financial Corporation 
and Principal Occupation 

Class C 
(term expires annually)

The United States Department of the Treasury as the sole holder of the 
Company’s Series C Preferred previously elected the following 
individuals to serve on the Company’s board of directors and has 
nominated them for reelection as Class C directors at the annual 
meeting.  The Company has been advised that the U.S. Treasury will 
deliver a proxy voting in favor of the election of each of these nominees to 
another annual term as directors.

Dennis O. Battles 
(66) 
Director since 2012 

Director of Centrue Financial Corporation and Centrue Bank.  With 30 plus 
years of banking experience, Mr. Battles is a retired executive of US Bank 
where he headed Corporate Banking. In this position, he was accountable for 
corporate lending across the United States along with attendant corporate 
products including Treasury Management, International Banking, Foreign 
Exchange and Trading, Government Banking and Commercial Customer 
Service. Prior to its merger with US Bank, Mr. Battles was chief credit officer 
for Mercantile Bancorporation in St. Louis where he also held positions in 
Mergers and Acquisitions, Strategic Planning and regional/community 
banking. 

Richard C. Peterson 
(62) 
Director since 2011 

Director of Centrue Financial Corporation and Centrue Bank. Chief 
Executive Officer, Newport Capital Bancorp, LLC; Formerly, Managing 
Principal and Co-Founder of Hermitage Capital Partners; Executive Vice 
President and Head of Community Banking, Banco Popular North America.  
With 30 plus years of executive leadership within high profile banking 
organizations, Mr. Peterson’s qualifications and experience includes 
managing and co-founding a start-up private equity venture formed to 
acquire, re-capitalize and aggregate troubled community banks in the Chicago 
market which allows him to serve as a critical resource to the organization.  In 
addition his leadership experience in retail banking and in increasing net 
income allows him to provide guidance on the company’s customer 
acquisition and retention strategies. 

All of our directors will hold office for the terms indicated, or until their respective successors are duly elected and 
qualified.  Other than the United States Department of Treasury’s right to appoint two (2) directors, there are no 
arrangements or understandings between Centrue Financial Corporation and any person pursuant to which any 
director has been selected.  No member of the board of directors is related to any other member of the board of 
directors.

Separation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Roles and Board Oversight of Risk 

The chairman and chief executive officer roles are currently separate.  While the company’s by-laws permit the 
chairman and the chief executive officer to be the same person, we believe separation of these roles provides 
important checks and balances for the CEO role and those areas reporting to the board.   The board has delegated to 
the audit committee the responsibility of implementing internal audit controls and maintaining the safety, soundness 
and integrity of the institution by properly mitigating and managing risk.  On a daily basis, these duties are the 
responsibilities of the chief risk officer.  This individual has a direct reporting relationship to the chairman of the 
audit committee who, in turn, provides regular updates to the full board.  In addition, the board receives regular 
updates from key business leaders in the organization on critical business issues as part of the board’s oversight 
function.  From a leadership perspective, the board does interact periodically with key members of management 
through their participation in various board committee meetings.  However, most routine matters are delegated to the 
CEO.
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Board Committees and Meetings 

Our board of directors generally meets on a quarterly basis.  The board of directors met twelve times during 2012.  
During 2012 all directors with the exception of Mark Smith attended at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the 
meetings of the board and the committees on which they served. Mr. Smith was unavailable for one meeting of the 
corporate governance and nominating committee, and thus attended fifty percent (50%) of the meeting of this 
committee.  Our board of directors has standing executive and compensation, corporate governance and nominating 
and audit committees. 

Executive and Compensation Committee 

The members of the executive and compensation committee are Messrs. Shinkle (Chairman), McDonnell and 
Peterson.  The committee met two times during 2012.  The executive and compensation committee adopted a charter 
on June 16, 2005, which was last revised in April 2012.  The executive and compensation committee charter 
combines the duties of both the executive committee and the compensation committee and is available on the 
company’s website at www.centrue.com.     

The executive and compensation committee is organized, and its members appointed, by the board of directors to 
carry out the responsibilities of the board of directors relating to the effective administration of the company’s 
executive compensation and benefits programs as well as the general oversight of the company’s compensation 
program for all company employees.  The committee responsibilities include reviewing the performance of the CEO 
and all compensation matters for our executive officers. The executive committee also has the authority to act on 
other matters, not related to compensation, in between meetings of the board of directors. The committee is 
responsible for providing oversight to ensure that the company’s compensation incentives and benefits are 
competitive and are aligned with company goals so that such goals can be successfully achieved.   

The executive and compensation committee does not generally delegate any matters relating to the compensation 
and benefits of named executive officers to any other party other than to the full board of directors.  Items of daily 
management and decisions relating to company-wide compensation and benefits, not specifically targeting named 
executive officers, is delegated to company management to the extent that it does not result in decisions that may 
materially benefit named executive officers in comparison with the overall employee population.  The company’s 
chief executive officer may recommend or provide information for consideration regarding the compensation and 
benefits of named executive officers to members of the board of directors. 

The executive and compensation committee also periodically reviews director compensation. This oversight may be 
done in conjunction with or as delegated to the corporate governance committee or the full board of directors.   

Audit Committee 

The audit committee is responsible for assisting the board of directors with oversight of (1) the integrity of our 
financial statements, (2) our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (3) the independent auditor's 
qualifications and independence and (4) the performance of our internal accounting function and independent 
auditors.  The audit committee has the direct authority and responsibility to select, evaluate and, where appropriate, 
replace the independent auditors.  The members of the audit committee are Messrs. Smith (Chair), Ganim and 
Peterson.  The committee met eight times during 2012. 

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee 

Our board of directors has a corporate governance and nominating committee which consists of three directors. 
Messrs. McDonnell (Chair), Smith and Sullivan are the current members of this committee. The corporate 
governance and nominating committee identifies individuals to become board members and selects, or recommends 
for the board's selection, director nominees to be presented for stockholder approval at the annual meeting of 
stockholders or to fill any vacancies. The corporate governance and nominating committee met two times during 
2012.    
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Our board of directors has adopted a written charter for the corporate governance and nominating committee. The 
charter and principles are available on the company’s website at www.centrue.com.  

The corporate governance and nominating committee will consider director nominees recommended by 
stockholders.  A stockholder who wishes to recommend a person or persons for consideration as a nominee for 
election to the board of directors must send a written notice by mail, c/o corporate governance and nominating 
committee, Centrue Financial Corporation, 7700 Bonhomme Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63105, that sets forth: 
(1) the name, address (business and residence), date of birth and principal occupation or employment (present and 
for the past five years) of each person whom the stockholder proposes to be considered as a nominee; and (2) the 
number of shares of the common stock beneficially owned by the proposed nominee and the stockholder making the 
recommendation. 

We may require any proposed nominee to furnish additional information as may be reasonably required to determine 
the qualifications of such proposed nominee to serve as a director of Centrue Financial Corporation.  Stockholder 
recommendations will be considered only if received no less than 120 days or no more than 150 days before the one 
year anniversary of the date of the proxy statement sent to stockholders in connection with the previous year's 
annual meeting of stockholders.  The corporate governance and nominating committee will consider any nominee 
recommended by a stockholder in accordance with the preceding paragraph under the same criteria as any other 
potential nominee. 

While the corporate governance and nominating committee seeks board members from diverse professional 
backgrounds who combine a broad spectrum of experience and expertise with a reputation for integrity, the 
company does not have a formal written diversity policy for director nominations.  Directors should have experience 
in positions with a high degree of responsibility, be leaders in the companies or institutions with which they are 
affiliated and be selected based upon contributions they can make to the board in performing its oversight 
responsibilities.  The corporate governance and nominating committee uses a subjective process for identifying and 
evaluating nominees for director, based on the information available to, and the subjective judgments of, the 
members of the corporate governance and nominating committee and our then current needs.  We do not believe 
there would be any difference in the manner in which the committee evaluates nominees based on whether the 
nominee is recommended by a stockholder or not. 

Code of Ethics 

The company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of our employees, officers and directors, including our 
principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons 
performing similar functions. Our code of ethics contains written standards that we believe are reasonably designed 
to deter wrongdoing and to promote:  

� Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest 
between personal and professional relationships; 

� Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we file with, or 
submit to, the Securities and Exchange Commission and in other public communications we make; 

� Compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations; 
� The prompt internal reporting of violations of the code to an appropriate person or persons named in 

the code; and 
� Accountability for adherence to the code. 
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Stockholder Communications with the Board and Policy for Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

Our board of directors has a process for stockholders to send communications to the board of directors, its executive 
and compensation committee, its corporate governance and nominating committee or its audit committee, including 
complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters. Communications can be sent to 
the board of directors, its executive and compensation committee, its corporate governance and nominating 
committee or its audit committee or specific directors either by regular mail to the attention of the board of directors, 
its executive and compensation committee, its corporate governance and nominating committee, its audit committee 
or specific directors, at our principal executive offices at 7700 Bonhomme Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63105.  All 
of these communications will be reviewed by our secretary (1) to filter out communications that our secretary 
deems, in his or her reasonable judgment, are not appropriate for our directors, such as spam and communications 
offering to buy or sell products or services, and (2) to sort and relay the remainder to the appropriate committee or 
directors.

We expect and encourage all of our directors and nominees for election as directors to attend the annual meeting of 
stockholders, absent a compelling reason. All of our directors at the time of the 2012 annual meeting attended that 
meeting. 

Compensation of Directors  

Each non-employee Centrue Bank director received an annual retainer of $5,000.  Additionally, the audit committee 
chairman received an annual retainer of $20,000.  Each non-employee Centrue Financial Corporation director 
earned a fee of $750 for each quarterly board meeting attended and $500 for each committee meeting attended, and 
each non-employee Centrue Bank director earned $750 for each quarterly board meeting attended, $500 for each 
monthly board meeting attended  and $500 for each committee meeting attended.  Non-employee directors may also 
receive an annual grant of options to purchase shares of common stock under the company’s 2003 Stock Option 
Plan.  The 2003 Stock Option Plan provides for annual formula grants to each of our directors of options to purchase 
shares of common stock with an exercise price of not less than 100% of the then current market price of the common 
stock on the date of the grant.  Such previously issued options were exercisable over five years.  During 2012, non-
employee directors were not granted stock options.    

Director Compensation 

Name 

Fees Earned 
or 

Paid in 
Cash
($) (1)

Stock
Awards 

($) 

Option
Awards 
($) (2)

Non-Equity 
Incentive Plan 
Compensation 

($) 

Change in 
Pension

Value and 
Nonqualified 

Deferred 
Compensation 

Earnings 

All Other 
Compensation 

($) 
Total
($) 

Dennis O. Battles 
Walter E. Breipohl 
Randall E. Ganim 
Dennis J. McDonnell 
Richard C. Peterson 
John A. Shinkle 
Mark L. Smith 
Scott C. Sullivan

$     17,667 
$     25,750 
$     27,250 
$     18,250  
$     18,250 
$     29,750 
$     38,750 
$     17,250 

--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 

--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 

--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 

--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 

--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 

$    17,667 
$    25,750 
$    27,250 
$    18,250 
$    18,250 
$    29,750 
$    38,750 
$    17,250 

(1)   Includes deferrals of director fees earned in 2012 pursuant to the Centrue Financial Corporation Non-Employee Directors’ Deferred 
Compensation Plan, which became effective January 1, 2007.  The Plan allows participants to defer up to 100% of director fees 
earned.  Participant deferrals are invested in a phantom account representing units of Centrue Financial Corporation common stock.  
As of December 31, 2012, participants in the Plan held the following shares in their accounts:  Mr. Ganim-44,622 shares; Mr. Smith-
15,926 shares; and Mr. Sullivan-19,511 shares.  Also includes fees related to bank committees including the asset liability 
management committee and credit committee. 

(2) Stock options were not granted to directors in 2012. As of December 31, 2012, the directors listed in the table above have the
following number of option awards outstanding:  Mr. Breipohl-22,500 shares; Mr. Ganim-21,000 shares; Mr. McDonnell-22,500 
shares; Mr. Shinkle-22,500 shares; Mr. Smith-33,000 shares and Mr. Sullivan-22,500 shares. 
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II. ADVISORY (NON-BINDING) VOTE RATIFYING INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

The audit committee of the board has selected Crowe Horwath LLP as our independent auditors for our fiscal year 
ending December 31, 2013.  We are submitting the selection of independent auditors for stockholder ratification at 
the annual meeting.  A representative of Crowe Horwath LLP will be present at the annual meeting and will be 
available to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders.  Crowe Horwath LLP also served as our 
independent auditors for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. 

Our organizational documents do not require that our stockholders ratify the selection of our independent auditors.  
If our stockholders do not ratify the selection, the audit committee will reconsider whether to retain Crowe Horwath 
LLP, but may retain them nonetheless.  Even if the selection is ratified, the audit committee, in its discretion, may 
change the appointment at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best interests 
of the company. 

The board of directors unanimously recommends a vote “FOR” approval of the independent auditors. 
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN  
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock at 
March 1, 2013, by each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding common 
stock, by each director or nominee, by each executive officer named in the summary compensation table which can 
be found later in this proxy statement, and by all of our directors and executive officers as a group. 

The following table is based on information supplied to us by the directors, officers and stockholders described 
above.  The company has determined beneficial ownership on the same basis used to calculate beneficial ownership 
under SEC rules.  Shares of common stock subject to options that are either currently exercisable or exercisable 
within 60 days of March 1, 2013 are treated as outstanding and beneficially owned by the option holder for the 
purpose of computing the percentage ownership of the option holder.  However, these shares are not treated as 
outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.  On March 1, 2013, we had 
6,063,441 issued and outstanding shares of common stock, and 2,762 issued and outstanding shares of Series A 
Preferred, which shares of Series A Preferred are convertible into 172,042 shares of common stock. The table lists 
applicable percentage ownership based on 6,235,483 shares outstanding as of March 1, 2013.  Unless otherwise 
indicated, the address for each person listed below is 7700 Bonhomme Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63105. 

Name of Individual or 
Number of Individuals in Group 

Amount and Nature of 
Beneficial Ownership(1)(2)(3)

Percent 
of Class

5% Stockholders  

Wayne W. Whalen 
4920 South Greenwood Avenue 
Chicago, Illinois  60615 

762,659(4) 12.23% 

Directors and Nominees

Dennis O. Battles 
Walter E. Breipohl 
Randall E. Ganim 
Dennis J. McDonnell 
Richard C. Peterson 
John A. Shinkle 
Mark L. Smith 
Kurt R. Stevenson 
Scott C. Sullivan 

-
 47,329 

104,699(5) 

705,171(6)

-
 31,079(7) 

 66,640(8) 

47,149(9) 

57,979(10)

*
*

1.68% 
11.31% 

*
*

    1.07% 
*
*

Other Named Executive Officers

James C. Jones 
Daniel R. Kadolph 

-
-

*
*

All directors and all executive officers as a group
(19 persons)  

 1,187,078(11) 19.04% 

 * Less than 1%. 

(1) The information contained in this column is based upon information furnished to us by the persons named above and the members of
the designated group.  Amounts reported include shares held directly as well as shares which are held in retirement accounts and
shares held by members of the named individuals’ families or held by trusts of which the named individual is a trustee or substantial 
beneficiary, with respect to which shares the respective individual may be deemed to have sole or shared voting and/or investment
power.  The nature of beneficial ownership for shares shown in this column is sole voting and investment power, except as set forth in 
the footnotes below.  Inclusion of shares shall not constitute an admission of beneficial ownership or voting and investment power 
over included shares. 
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(2) Amounts shown include shares obtainable as of March 1, 2013 or obtainable within 60 days of March 1,2013) through the exercise of
options to purchase shares of common stock granted under the company’s stock option plans as follows:  Mr. Breipohl-22,500 shares;
Mr. Ganim-21,000 shares; Mr. McDonnell-22,500 shares; Mr. Shinkle-22,500 shares; Mr. Smith-33,000 shares; Mr. Stevenson-30,500 
shares; and Mr. Sullivan-22,500 shares. Option holders have the sole power to exercise their respective options and would also be 
entitled to exercise sole voting and investment power over the shares issued upon the exercise of such options.   

(3) Amounts shown also include phantom shares obtainable as of March 1, 2013 (or obtainable within 60 days of March 1, 2013) in 
accordance with the terms of the company’s non-employee directors’ deferred compensation plan and the executive deferred 
compensation plan to participants as follows:  Mr. Ganim-44,622 shares; Mr. Smith-15,926 shares; Mr. Stevenson-6,304 shares; and
Mr. Sullivan-19,511 shares. 

(4) Includes shares held by Mr. Whalen and his spouse, Paula Wolff, and shares held by WPW Associates, L.P., a family limited 
partnership, with shared voting and investment power over such shares.  The amount above also includes approximately 86,021 shares 
which are issuable upon the conversion of 1,381 shares of Centrue Financial Corporation convertible preferred stock held by Mr.
Whalen. These 86,021 shares are now eligible voting shares. 

(5) Includes 38,200 shares held by Mr. Ganim’s spouse, over which Mr. Ganim has no voting or investment power. 

(6) Includes shares held jointly by Mr. McDonnell and his wife over which voting and dispositive power is shared.  Also includes shares 
held in trust for which Mr. McDonnell is trustee.  The amount above also includes approximately 86,021 shares which are issuable
upon the conversion of 1,381 shares of Centrue Financial Corporation convertible preferred stock held by Mr. McDonnell.  These 
86,021 shares are now eligible voting shares. Mr. McDonnell's address is 1515 W. 22nd Street, 11th Floor, Oak Brook, Illinois  60523.

(7) Includes 1,079 shares held jointly by Mr. Shinkle and his spouse, over which Mr. Shinkle has voting and investment power.  Also
includes 100 shares held by Mr. Shinkle’s spouse, over which Mr. Shinkle has no voting or investment power. 

(8) Includes 11,366 shares held jointly by Mr. Smith and his spouse, over which voting and investment power is shared and 480 shares
held by Mr. Smith’s spouse, over which Mr. Smith has no voting or investment power.   

(9) Includes 425 shares held by Mr. Stevenson jointly with his spouse, over which shares Mr. Stevenson has shared voting and investment 
power. Also includes 9,020 shares held by Mr. Stevenson in his 401(k) retirement plan.  

(10) Includes 1,687 shares held by Mr. Sullivan’s spouse and 1,000 shares held by members of Mr. Sullivan’s family, over which shares
Mr. Sullivan has shared voting and investment power. 

(11) Footnotes (2), (3) and (5) through (10) are incorporated herein.  
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION SUMMARY 

Philosophy 

The executive and compensation committee’s principal responsibilities include acting upon matters delegated to the 
committee by the full board and ensuring the alignment of compensation with the strategic objectives of the 
organization.   

The executive and compensation committee recognizes that the company’s success is largely dependent on the 
selection, training and development of top caliber executive, managerial and professional talent.  The committee has 
established an objective that the company’s executives be among the most highly qualified and talented 
professionals available in their respective areas of expertise, when compared to a peer group that represents 
competition for business and talent.  The committee evaluates the performance of the chief executive officer and 
other executive officers of the organization considering input from other board members, the chief executive officer 
and the head of human resources in order to evaluate the company’s progress in relation to this objective. 

The company believes successful compensation programs link business and compensation strategies with thought 
processes that address a broad array of program influences.  This approach to strategy is a core value as it relates to 
how the company competes with other organizations while meeting the needs of its customers. 

Elements of Compensation and Determination of Payments  

The executive and compensation committee generally annually reviews and approves goals and objectives relevant 
to the incentive compensation plans of the chief executive officer and other executive officers of the organization.  
For the purposes of the committee’s oversight, executive officers include those individuals who are the annually 
named executive officers of the company.  No formal incentive compensation program was rolled out for 2012 due 
to the company’s financial performance projections. 

In determining the compensation and benefits of our executive officers, the following factors are generally taken 
into consideration:  the performance of the executive officers in achieving short and long-term goals; payment of 
compensation commensurate with the ability and expertise of the executive officers; and payment of compensation 
that is competitive with similar companies. The foregoing factors, as well as others, are considered in determining 
the compensation and benefits plans of our executive officers.    

The following elements include factors that will be considered when reviewing executive officer compensation and 
benefits:  base salary, bonus, long-term incentives, officer benefits, retirement plan funding, perquisites and group 
insurance benefits. 

The following is a general description of how each of these elements applies to our executive officers. 

Base Salary – In determining the base salary of executive officers, the executive and compensation committee 
defines base salary as the annualized regular cash compensation of an employee, excluding bonus awards, company 
contributions to employee benefits plans, or other compensation not designated as salary.  The executive and 
compensation committee considers the individual job performance of the executive officers, as well as overall 
corporate performance, and the median salaries as published by our peers and other third party consultants.  Base 
salaries are generally reviewed and considered for adjustment on an annual basis, unless circumstances exist in 
which the executive is assuming a scope and degree of responsibilities materially greater or lesser than the 
executive’s present duties, or it is deemed that an adjustment is needed to meet marketplace demands.  The 
Committee may delegate base salary matters for executive officers, other than that of the chief executive officer, to 
the chief executive officer.     

Short-Term Incentive Compensation (Cash Bonus) – The short-term incentive compensation program is intended 
to sustain management’s focus on the company’s requirement for strategic long-range planning by encouraging 
attainment of annual profitability goals.  The plan is designed to attract, develop, retain and reward well-qualified 
management and executive staff.  No formal officer short-term incentive compensation program was rolled out for 
2012 due to the company’s financial performance projections. 
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Long-Term Incentive Compensation – The company’s primary long-term incentive vehicle is stock options.  
Inclusion in the company’s long-term incentive program is based on the recommendation of the chief executive 
officer and the executive and compensation committee and is approved by the board of directors.  No specific 
formula is used in determining the amount and frequency of long-term incentives.  However, the committee 
considers factors such as earnings per share, return on equity and total return to shareholders and generally reserves 
long-term incentive grants to motivate and reward extraordinary performance that may positively impact the 
company’s long-term objectives.  Restricted stock awards may also be utilized.  No long-term equity awards were 
granted for 2012 due to the company’s financial performance projections. 

Officer Benefit Programs – Officer benefits programs focus on two general types of officer benefits:  nonqualified 
retirement benefits and officer life insurance.  Officer benefits are considered to be a critical component in 
attracting, retaining and motivating key talent. 

On January 1, 2008, the Centrue Financial Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan took effect.  
Participants may defer up to 50% of salary and up to 100% of bonus (beginning with bonuses earned in 2008).  The 
plan is available to members of the senior management team and other select individuals deemed to meet the criteria 
of “top hat” plan participants.  Prior to 2013, participant deferrals were required to be invested in a phantom account 
representing units of Centrue Financial Corporation common stock.  The company may make discretionary 
matching contributions with respect to a portion of the participant’s deferral and discretionary contributions that are 
not related to the participant’s deferrals.  The company match, and any discretionary employer contributions, are 
credited quarterly (with the exception of a discretionary annual 3% contribution to those officers who would have 
otherwise received a 3% safe harbor 401(k) match of deferred dollars) and invested per the participant’s direction 
into one or more funds available to participants.  Participants are always 100% vested in their own deferrals.  
Company contributions (with the exception of a discretionary annual 3% contribution to those officers who would 
have otherwise received a 3% safe harbor 401(k) match of deferred dollars) vest after five years (e.g. 2008 company 
contributions become vested on December 31, 2013 and 2009 contributions become vested on December 31, 2014).  
In 2012, the company made no matching contributions to this plan. 

No trust was established for the plan. However, the plan is structured to allow for a rabbi trust. Participants may 
elect to receive distributions upon separation of service or upon normal retirement age (65) in a lump sum, over a 
five-year period or over a 10-year period.  Participants have the option to take a distribution upon a change of 
control.  Participants may elect to receive plan payments in cash, shares of company stock or a combination of both. 

A small group of officers, including our chief executive officer, are covered by a split dollar plan which, subject to 
the achievement of certain conditions, pays out a portion of death benefits to the executives’ named beneficiaries.    

Retirement Benefits – The executive and compensation committee considers various benefits, including retirement 
benefits, in determining compensation.  The primary retirement vehicle is the company’s 401(k) plan which allows 
eligible participants to defer compensation up to annual IRS limits subject to non-discrimination testing.  In 2012, 
there was no company match to the 401(k) plan and it was considered to be a non-safe harbor plan. 

Company executives participate in retirement plan programs in a manner consistent with plan provisions covering 
other employees.  Currently, the company does not provide executives with any supplemental executive retirement 
plan benefits.   

Perquisites – Executive officers may have a limited number of perquisites made available to them.  The main 
perquisites that may be offered are reimbursement of business expenses and employment agreements or change-in-
control agreements.   

Group Insurance Benefits – The company offers a comprehensive employee benefits package for all eligible 
employees which includes group health, dental, vision, life, dependent life, short and long-term disability insurance 
and a flexible spending account plan.  With the exception of an accelerated waiting period for some insurances for 
officers, executive officers are afforded the same participation and rewards terms as all other eligible staff.   
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Total Rewards – The company considers compensation a single package consisting of the parts described in this 
statement.  When viewed in this manner, the organization is positioned to: 1) establish specific goals for each form 
of compensation, 2) project funding requirements consistent with the company’s business strategies, and 3) 
administer the program with predetermined goals as a guide.  Assuming strategic goals are met, the combined total 
rewards would be expected to be comparable to similarly sized banks within the company’s market area.  The 
approach to total rewards for 2012 was notably impacted by the company’s financial performance. 

TARP Related Compensation Matters 

In connection with the company’s participation in January 2009 in the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Troubled 
Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program (the “TARP Program”), the executive and compensation committee 
is required to identify the features in the company’s incentive compensation arrangements that could encourage its 
senior executive officers to take unnecessary and excessive risks that could threaten the value of the company.  The 
committee is required to review the company’s incentive compensation arrangements to ensure that senior executive 
officers are not encouraged to take such risks.  The committee must also meet at least every six months with the 
company’s senior risk officers to discuss and review the relationship between the company’s risk management 
policies and practices and its incentive compensation arrangements.  The committee began this dialogue with the 
company’s senior risk officers in January of 2009 and has since continued on the semi-annual schedule. 

After analyzing various company practices and procedures as they relate to compensation risk, the senior risk 
officers concluded that the compensation plan arrangements do not encourage unnecessary and excessive risks that 
threaten the value of Centrue Financial Corporation. At least every six months, the senior risk officers repeat this 
process and provide the executive and compensation committee with its findings, observations and 
recommendations and serve as a resource for the committee during its certification exercises.   

Additionally, in conjunction with the executive and compensation committee, management works to ensure that 
TARP-related responsibilities are met.  These responsibilities include, but are not limited to:  identification of senior 
executive officers and highly compensated employees for purposes of restrictions on incentive compensation, 
compliance with severance pay prohibitions and clawback requirements for bonus payments, prohibition of certain 
gross-up and bonus payments and accruals, compensation committee review of plans, filings with Treasury, 
adoption of a company-wide policy on excessive or luxury expenditures, review of bonuses, retention awards and 
other compensation paid prior to the enactment of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”) 
and disclosures regarding compensation consultants and perquisites.    

The executive and compensation committee did consider the results of the 2012 shareholder advisory vote on 
executive compensation.  As a result of the favorable vote received, no material changes were made to our current 
executive compensation decisions and policies. 

During the period that the U.S. Treasury holds the company’s preferred or common stock, the company may be 
restricted from paying bonus and other incentive compensation in cash to the company’s executive officers. 

Written Agreement Related Compensation Matters

In accordance with the Centrue Financial Corporation and Centrue Bank joint Written Agreement with the Federal 
Reserve Bank of Chicago and the IDFPR, dated December 18, 2009, the company is subject to certain restrictions 
on indemnification and severance payments of section 18(k) of the FDI Act (12 U.S.C. § 1828(k)) and Part 359 of 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s regulations (12 C.F.R. Part 359). 
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Executive Compensation 

The following table shows the compensation earned by the chief executive officer and the two other most highly 
compensated executive officers in 2012. 

Summary Compensation Table 

Name and  
Principal Position Year Salary 

($) 
Bonus 

($) 

Stock
Awards 

($) 

Option
Awards 

($) 

Non-Equity 
Incentive Plan 
Compensation 

($) 

Non-qualified 
Deferred 

Compen-sation 
Earnings 

($) 

All Other 
Compensation  

($) 
Total
($) 

Kurt R. Stevenson 

President & Chief 
Executive Officer (1)

2012 

2011 

2010 

$    275,000 

$    209,136 

$    188,000 

$          --- 

$          --- 

$          --- 

--- 

--- 

--- 

$           --- 

$           --- 

$           --- 

--- 

--- 

--- 

--- 

--- 

--- 

$               456 

$               406     

$            3,417 

$     275,456 

$     209,542 

$     191,417 

Daniel R. Kadolph 

EVP/Chief Financial 

Officer (2)

2012 $    170,500   

     

$          ---     --- $           --- --- --- $            1,000 

            

$     171,500  

       

James C. Jones 

EVP/Chief Lending 

Officer (3)

2012 

2011 

$    188,750 

$      19,295 

$    18,813    

$      7,500    

--- 

--- 

$           --- 

$           --- 

--- 

--- 

--- 

--- 

$                --- 

$                --- 

$     207,563  

$       26,795 

(1) Mr. Stevenson’s 2012 All Other Compensation figure represents $456 of imputed income related to Mr. Stevenson’s split dollar bank-owned life 
insurance (BOLI) policy. 

(2) Mr. Kadolph was a consultant for Centrue Bank from October of 2011 through his employment start date in January of 2012.  As a consultant, he was 
paid $52,200 of which $8,750 was paid in 2012 and $43,450 in 2011.  Mr. Kadolph’s 2012 All Other Compensation figure of $1,000 represents 
compensation paid to him to help defray the costs of health insurance during his waiting period. 

(3) Mr. Jones’ 2011 bonus figure represents the amount paid in 2011 as part of a $25,000 sign-on bonus.  His 2012 bonus figure represents the remaining 
$17,500 of the sign-on bonus plus a one-time bonus of $1,313 as part of a company-wide program that was available to substantially all employees 

subject to certain service requirements and excluding those SEO’s prohibited from bonus payments under TARP.

Compensation of the Chief Executive Officer 

Kurt R. Stevenson 

During 2012, Kurt R. Stevenson served as the chief executive officer of Centrue Financial Corporation.  There was 
no change to Mr. Stevenson’s salary of $275,000 in 2012 from the time Mr. Stevenson was appointed president and 
chief executive officer on September 21, 2011. 

Since no formal officer incentive program was rolled out for 2012, Mr. Stevenson received no bonus for year 2012 
performance. 

Mr. Stevenson was eligible for participation in company-sponsored benefits programs in 2012, including the 
company’s group health, dental and vision coverage, group-term life insurance coverage, and company-sponsored 
retirement programs including the 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan, as well as a non-qualified deferred compensation 
plan.  Mr. Stevenson also holds a split-dollar BOLI policy which pays out a portion of death benefits to his named 
beneficiaries. 
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Mr. Stevenson did not receive any stock options or compensation associated with a car allowance or country club 
dues in 2012.

The compensation and benefits package for 2012 for Mr. Stevenson was approved by the company’s board of 
directors and was commensurate with his knowledge, skills and abilities, as supported by his professional experience 
and accomplishments, as well as the board’s belief in his ability to successfully lead the organization.  The executive 
and compensation committee has reviewed all components of the total compensation package of the chief executive 
officer and the other named executive officers in this proxy statement and believes them to be reasonable and not 
excessive.      

Compensation of Other Executive Officers 

Daniel R Kadolph 

Beginning in January of 2012, Daniel R. Kadolph served as the executive vice president and chief financial officer 
of Centrue Financial Corporation.  Mr. Kadolph’s salary was set at $186,000 in January of 2012 when he 
transitioned from a consulting role to an employee.  In addition, Mr. Kadolph received $1,000 in February of 2012 
to help defray the costs of health insurance during his waiting period.  

Since no formal officer incentive program was rolled out for 2012, Mr. Kadolph received no bonus for year 2012 
performance.  

Mr. Kadolph was eligible for participation in company-sponsored benefits programs in 2012, including the 
company’s group health, dental and vision coverage, group-term life insurance coverage and the 401(k) and Profit 
Sharing Plan. 

Mr. Kadolph did not receive any stock options or compensation associated with a car allowance or country club dues 
in 2012. 

James Christopher Jones 

Beginning in January of 2012, James Christopher Jones served as the executive vice president and chief lending 
officer of Centrue Financial Corporation.  Mr. Jones’ salary was increased from $175,000 to $190,000 in January 
2012 in conjunction with his promotion. 

Since no formal officer incentive program was rolled out for 2012, Mr. Jones received no bonus for year 2012 
performance, except for a one-time bonus of $1,313 as part of a company-wide program that was available to 
substantially all employees subject to certain service requirements and excluding those SEO’s prohibited from bonus 
payments under TARP.  In addition, Mr. Jones was granted a sign-on bonus in 2011 of $25,000, of which $17,500 
was paid in 2012. 

Mr. Jones was eligible for participation in company-sponsored benefits programs in 2012, including the company’s 
group health, dental and vision coverage, group-term life insurance coverage and the 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan. 

Mr. Jones did not receive any stock options or compensation associated with a car allowance or country club dues in 
2012. 

�
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TRANSACTIONS WITH MANAGEMENT 

The company’s audit committee charter requires the review of all related party transactions, other than Regulation O 
transactions. 

Several of our directors and executive officers (including their affiliates, families and companies in which they are 
principal owners, officers or directors) were loan customers of, and had other transactions with, us and our 
subsidiary in the ordinary course of business.  These loans and lines of credit were made in the ordinary course of 
business on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for 
comparable loans with persons not related to the lender and did not involve more than the normal risk of 
collectibility or present other unfavorable features.   

ACCOUNTANT FEES 

Audit Fees 
Audit fees and expenses billed to the company by Crowe Horwath LLP for the audit of the company’s financial 
statements, for 2012 and 2011 were $201,000 and $314,000.  Audit fees for 2011 also include the audit of internal 
control over financial reporting.  The audit services include the review of financial statements included in our 
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and other services normally performed by independent registered public accounting 
firms in connection with statutory and regulatory filings. 

Tax Fees
Tax fees and expenses billed to the company for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 were $48,000 and $62,000 for services 
related to tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning, consisting primarily of preparing the company’s federal and 
state income tax returns for the previous fiscal periods and inclusive of expenses. 

All Other Fees 
Fees and expenses billed to the company for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 were $14,000 and $30,000 for all other 
services, which primarily consisted of the audit of the benefit plans. 

The audit committee, after consideration of the matter, does not believe that the rendering of these services by 
Crowe Horwath LLP to be incompatible with maintaining its independence as our principal accountant.   

The audit committee is responsible for reviewing and pre-approving any non-audit services to be performed by the 
company's independent auditors.  The audit committee has delegated its pre-approval authority to the chairman of 
the audit committee to act between meetings of the audit committee.  Any pre-approval given by the chairman of the 
audit committee pursuant to this delegation is presented to the full audit committee at its next regularly scheduled 
meeting.  The audit committee or chairman of the audit committee reviews and, if appropriate, approves non-audit 
service engagements, taking into account the proposed scope of the non-audit services, the proposed fees for the 
non-audit services, whether the non-audit services are permissible under applicable law or regulation and the likely 
impact of the non-audit services on the independence of the independent auditors.   
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

The audit committee assists the board in carrying out its oversight responsibilities for our financial reporting 
process, audit process and internal controls.  The committee also reviews the audited financial statements and 
recommends to the board that they be included in our annual report.  The committee is comprised solely of outside 
directors who are independent of management.  The current charter is available on the company’s website at 
www.centrue.com. 

Management is responsible for the preparation, presentation and integrity of our financial statements, accounting 
and financial reporting principles, internal controls, and procedures designed to ensure compliance with accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.  Crowe Horwath LLP, our independent registered public accounting 
firm, is responsible for performing an independent audit of the financial statements in accordance with standards of 
the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards.  Centrue Financial Corporation outsources the internal audit function to 
a third party that reports directly to the audit committee and management.  This third party is responsible for 
objectively reviewing and evaluating the adequacy, effectiveness and quality of our system of internal controls 
relating to the reliability and integrity of our financial information.  The audit committee has ultimate authority and 
responsibility to select, evaluate and, when appropriate, replace our independent auditors. 

The audit committee has reviewed and discussed our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2012 with our management and Crowe Horwath LLP, our independent registered public accounting 
firm. 

Respectively Submitted, 
2012 Audit Committee 

Mark L. Smith, Chair 
Randall E. Ganim 

      Richard C. Peterson 

Audit Committee Financial Expert 

The board of directors has determined that two of the three audit committee members, Messrs. Ganim and Smith, are 
qualified for designation as “audit committee financial experts.”    

“HOUSEHOLDING” OF PROXY MATERIALS 

The company intends to household proxy materials this year.  Brokers to Centrue Financial Corporation 
stockholders will deliver a single proxy statement and annual report to multiple stockholders sharing an address 
unless contrary instructions have been received from an affected stockholder. Once you have received notice from 
your broker or the company that they will be “householding” communications to your address, “householding” will 
continue until you are notified otherwise or until you revoke your consent. If, at any time, you no longer wish to 
participate in “householding” and would prefer to receive a separate proxy statement and  annual report, please 
notify your broker, direct your written request to Centrue Financial Corporation, 7700 Bonhomme Avenue, St. 
Louis, Missouri 63105 or contact Investor Relations at investor.relations@centrue.com.  

Stockholders who currently receive multiple copies of the proxy statement and annual report at their address and 
would like to request “householding” of their communications should contact their broker or, if a stockholder is a 
direct holder of Centrue Financial Corporation shares, they should submit a written request to Computershare 
Investor Services, the company’s transfer agent, at 2 North LaSalle Street, Chicago, IL 60602. 
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OTHER MATTERS 

We do not intend to present any other business at the meeting and know of no other matters which will be presented.  
However, if any other matters come before the meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying 
proxy to vote in accordance with their best judgment on those matters.  A representative of our independent auditors, 
Crowe Horwath LLP, is expected to attend the annual meeting and will be available to respond to appropriate 
questions and to make a statement if he or she so desires. 

Your proxy is solicited by the board of directors, and we will pay the cost of solicitation.  In addition to soliciting 
proxies by use of the mail, officers, directors and regular employees of Centrue Financial Corporation or our 
subsidiaries, acting on our behalf, may solicit proxies by telephone, telegraph or personal interview.  We will, at our 
expense, upon the receipt of a request from brokers and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries, forward proxy 
soliciting material to the beneficial owners of shares held of record by such persons. 

FAILURE TO INDICATE CHOICE 

If any stockholder fails to indicate a choice with respect to any of the proposals on the proxy for the annual meeting, 
the shares of such stockholder shall be voted FOR the nominees listed and FOR the appointment of Crowe Horwath 
LLP as our independent auditors. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

      
Kurt R. Stevenson 
President and  
Chief Executive Officer 

St. Louis, Missouri 
March 22, 2013 

ALL STOCKHOLDERS ARE URGED TO SIGN 
AND MAIL THEIR PROXIES PROMPTLY 
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Crowe Horwath LLP
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Centrue Financial Corporation 
St. Louis, Missouri 

Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Centrue Financial Corporation, which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income and 
comprehensive income(loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Centrue Financial Corporation as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 Crowe Horwath LLP 
Oak Brook, Illinois 
March 12, 2013



CENTRUE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PAR VALUE AND SHARE DATA)

2

December 31,  December 31, 
2012  2011 

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $  63,271  $  69,735
Securities available-for-sale  194,435  228,836
Restricted securities   6,934    9,150
Loans  559,014  582,395
Allowance for loan losses   (18,948)    (21,232)

Net loans  540,066 561,163
Bank-owned life insurance   32,388    31,412
Mortgage servicing rights  2,020  2,089
Premises and equipment, net   23,135    23,754
Other intangible assets, net  4,313  5,264
Other real estate owned   29,305    29,667
Other assets  7,907  6,914

     

Total assets $  903,774 $  967,984
     

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Liabilities      

Deposits: 
Non-interest-bearing $  136,343  $  134,137
Interest-bearing  648,994  714,501

Total deposits  785,337   848,638
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase  23,115  18,036
Federal Home Loan Bank advances   20,056    23,058
Notes payable  10,250  10,440
Series B mandatory redeemable preferred stock   268    268
Subordinated debentures  20,620  20,620
Other liabilities   16,212    14,355

Total liabilities  875,858 935,415
     

Stockholders' equity 
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (aggregate liquidation preference of       

$2,762)  500  500
Series C Fixed Rate, Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (aggregate      

liquidation preference of $32,668)  32,049  31,429
Common stock, $1 par value, 15,000,000 shares authorized; 7,453,555       

shares issued at 2012 and 2011  7,454  7,454
Surplus   74,585    74,558
Accumulated deficit  (66,675)  (60,064)
Accumulated other comprehensive income   1,880    569

 49,793 54,446
     

Treasury stock, at cost, 1,390,114 shares at 2012 and 2011  (21,877)  (21,877)
Total stockholders' equity  27,916   32,569

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $  903,774  $  967,984

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



CENTRUE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 (IN THOUSANDS)

3

2012  2011 
Interest income 

Loans $  27,444  $  34,201
Securities

Taxable  3,048   4,103
Exempt from federal income taxes  445  699

Federal funds sold and other  138   158
Total interest income 31,075 39,161

   
Interest expense 

Deposits  4,351   8,244
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under  

agreements to repurchase  44   44
Federal Home Loan Bank advances  739  1,452
Series B mandatory redeemable preferred stock  16   16
Subordinated debentures  899  1,107
Notes payable  372   362

Total interest expense 6,421 11,225

Net interest income  24,654  27,936
Provision for loan losses  9,725   11,375
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 14,929 16,561

   
Noninterest income 

Service charges  4,285   4,599
Mortgage banking income  2,526  1,321
Electronic banking services  2,197   2,172
Bank-owned life insurance  976  1,009
Securities gains, net  1,398   1,157
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses  -  (499)
Portion of loss recognized in other     

comprehensive income (before taxes)  -  -
Net impairment on securities  -  (499)

Gain on sale of OREO  594  25
Gain on sale of other assets  -   1,332
Other income  1,967  819

13,943  11,935

(Continued) 
   



CENTRUE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 (IN THOUSANDS)
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2012  2011 
Noninterest expense 

Salaries and employee benefits   14,949    14,127
Occupancy, net  2,658  2,859
Furniture and equipment   1,159    1,674
Marketing  395  266
Supplies and printing   294    289
Telephone  713  910
Data processing   1,437    1,528
FDIC insurance  2,039  2,524
Loan processing and collection costs   1,806    2,134
OREO valuation adjustment  1,642  6,835
Amortization of intangible assets   951    1,029
Other expenses  5,551  6,259

33,594   40,434

Income (loss) before income taxes $  (4,722)  $  (11,938)
Income tax expense (benefit)  (834)  (1,366)

Net income (loss) $ (3,888)  $ (10,572)

Preferred stock dividends   2,103    2,012
Net income (loss) for common stockholders $ (5,991) $ (12,584)

   
Total comprehensive income (loss): 

Net income (loss) $  (3,888)  $  (10,572)

Change in unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale   3,541    4,184
Other than temporary impairment on securities  -  499
Reclassification adjustment for losses (gains) recognized in income   (1,398)    (1,157)

Net unrealized gains (loss) 2,143 3,526
Tax expense (benefit)   832    1,368

Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,311 2,158
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (2,577)  $ (8,414)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CENTRUE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 (IN THOUSANDS)

6

2012   2011 
Cash flows from operating activities 

Net income (loss) $  (3,888)  $  (10,572)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by 

operating activities   
Depreciation  1,320  1,841
Amortization of intangible assets  951    1,029
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights, net  638  524
Amortization of bond premiums, net  2,682    2,329
Mortgage servicing rights valuation adjustment -  89
Income tax valuation adjustment  2,509    5,493
Share based compensation  27  70
Gain on sale of branches -   (1,274)
Provision for loan losses  9,725  11,375
Provision for deferred income taxes  (2,509)    (5,493)
Earnings on bank-owned life insurance  (976)  (1,009)
Other than temporary impairment, securities -   499
OREO valuation allowance  1,642  6,835
Securities sale (gains), net  (1,398)    (1,157)
Gain on sale of other assets, net -  (58)
Gain on sale of OREO  (594)    (25)
Gain on sale of loans  (2,312)  (1,027)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale  93,446    54,744
Origination of loans held for sale  (90,828)  (53,775)
Change in assets and liabilities   

(Increase) decrease in other assets  (1,675)  5,448
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities  (880)    (1,395)

Net cash provided by operating activities  7,880 14,491
Cash flows from investing activities    

Proceeds from paydowns of securities available for sale  51,441  43,686
Proceeds from calls and maturities of securities available for sale  12,665    22,685
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale  48,429  35,287
Purchases of securities available for sale  (77,196)    (109,028)
Redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock  2,087  -
Redemption of Federal Reserve Bank stock  205    1,320
Purchase of Federal Reserve Bank stock  (76)  -
Net decrease (increase) in loans  1,167    84,566
(Purchase) disposal of premises and equipment, net  (701)  (276)
Proceeds from sale of OREO  9,049    12,217
Sale of branches, net of premium received -  (12,781)

Net cash from investing activities  47,070   77,676

(Continued) 



CENTRUE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 (IN THOUSANDS)

7

2012   2011 
Cash flows from financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in deposits  (63,301)    (59,041)
Net increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased  

and securities sold under agreements to repurchase  5,079    1,848
Repayment of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank  (77,002)  (58,001)
Proceeds from advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank  74,000    10,000
Payments on notes payable  (190)  (183)

Net cash used in financing activities (61,414)   (105,377)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (6,464) (13,210)
Cash and cash equivalents    

Beginning of period   69,735  82,945
End of period $  63,271  $ 69,735

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash payments for 

Interest $  6,140 $  11,146
Income taxes paid (refund)  303    (2,380)

Transfers from loans to other real estate owned  9,899  22,950

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 



CENTRUE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(TABLE AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

8

Note 1.  Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Centrue Financial Corporation is a bank holding company organized under the laws of the State of 
Delaware.  When we use the terms “Centrue,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our,” we mean Centrue 
Financial Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, and its consolidated subsidiary. When we use the term the 
“Bank,” we are referring to our wholly owned banking subsidiary, Centrue Bank. The Company and the Bank 
provide a full range of banking services to individual and corporate customers located 
in markets extending from the far western and southern suburbs of the Chicago metropolitan area across 
Central Illinois down to the metropolitan St. Louis area.  These services include demand, time, and savings 
deposits; business and consumer lending; and mortgage banking.  Additionally, brokerage, asset management, 
and trust services are provided to our customers on a referral basis to third party providers.  The Company is 
subject to competition from other financial institutions and nonfinancial institutions providing financial 
services.  Additionally, the Company and the Bank are subject to regulations of certain regulatory agencies and 
undergo periodic examinations by those regulatory agencies. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and results of operations of the Company and its 
subsidiary after elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions.  

Use of Estimates 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and its subsidiary conform to U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”) and general practice within the banking industry. The preparation of 
consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Material estimates which are particularly susceptible to 
significant change in the near term relate to the fair value of investment securities, the determination of the 
allowance for loan losses, including valuation of real estate and other collateral, valuation of other real estate 
owned, other-than-temporary impairment of securities and the ability to realize our deferred tax assets. 

Cash flows 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, deposits with other financial institutions with maturities under 90 
days, and federal funds sold.  Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transactions, 
repurchase agreements, and federal funds purchased.  

Securities 

Available-for-sale.  Securities classified as available-for-sale are those securities that the Company intends to 
hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily to maturity.  Available-for-sale securities are carried at 
fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of related deferred income taxes, recorded in stockholders’ 
equity as a separate component of other comprehensive income. Any decision to sell a security classified as 
available-for-sale would be based on various factors, including significant movements in interest rates, changes 
in the maturity mix of the Company's assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory capital considerations, 
and other similar factors.   

Purchases and sales of securities are recognized on a trade date basis. Realized securities gains or losses are 
reported in securities gains (losses), net in the Consolidated Statement of Income (Loss). The cost of securities 
sold is based on the specific identification method. On a quarterly basis, the Company makes an assessment to 
determine whether there have been any events or circumstances to indicate that a security for which there is an 
unrealized loss is impaired on an other-than-temporary (“OTTI”) basis. In evaluating other-than-temporary 
impairment, the Company  considers many factors including the  severity and  duration of the  impairment;  the  



CENTRUE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(TABLE AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

9

Note 1.  Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, which for debt securities considers external credit 
ratings and recent downgrades; and whether it intends to sell or it is more likely than not that it will be required 
to sell a security in an unrealized loss position before recovery of its amortized cost basis. Securities for which 
there is an unrealized loss that is deemed to be OTTI are written down to fair value with the write-down 
recorded as a realized loss and included in net impairment on securities, but only to the extent the impairment 
is related to credit losses. The amount of the impairment related to other factors is recognized in other 
comprehensive income unless management intends to sell the security or believes it is more likely than not that 
it will be required to sell the security prior to full recovery.

For trust preferred collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”), the issuer’s financial condition, payment history, 
and ability to pay interest and repay principal according to the terms of the financial instrument are analyzed.  
For multi-issuer securities, the analysis is conducted for each issuer. In analyzing an issuer’s financial 
condition, the Company reviews relevant balance sheet, income statement and ratio information.  Industry and 
market information are also considered.  The Company considers whether the securities were issued by or have 
principal and interest payments guaranteed by the federal government or its agencies.  The Company conducts 
regular reviews of the bond agency ratings of securities.    

Interest income is reported net of amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. Amortization of 
purchase premium or discount is included in interest income. Premiums and discounts on securities are 
amortized over the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments except for mortgage backed securities 
where prepayments are anticipated.  

Restricted Securities.  Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock are carried at cost and 
are included in restricted stock. The Company is required to maintain these equity securities as a member of 
both the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Reserve System, and in amounts as required by these 
institutions. These equity securities are “restricted” in that they can only be sold back to the respective 
institutions or another member institution at par. Therefore, they are less liquid than other tradable equity 
securities and no impairment has been recorded during 2012 or 2011. 

Loans 

Loans are carried at the principal amount outstanding, including certain net deferred loan origination fees. 
Interest income on loans is accrued based on principal amounts outstanding. Loan and lease origination fees, 
fees for commitments that are expected to be exercised and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred 
and the net amount amortized over the estimated life of the related loans or commitments as a yield 
adjustment. Other credit-related fees are recognized as fee income when earned.  

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate 
cost or fair value, as determined by outstanding commitments from investors.  Net unrealized losses, if any, are 
recorded as a valuation allowance and charged to earnings. Mortgage loans held for sale are sold with either 
servicing rights retained or servicing rights released.  When retaining the servicing rights, the carrying value of 
mortgage loans sold is reduced by the cost allocated to the servicing right.  Gains and losses on sales of 
mortgage loans are based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related loan 
sold.  When selling service released, the gain or loss is determined by comparing the selling price to the value 
of the mortgage sold.

Nonaccrual Loans.  Generally, commercial loans and loans secured by real estate are designated as nonaccrual: 
(a) when either principal or interest payments are 90 days or more past due based on contractual terms unless 
the loan is sufficiently collateralized such that full repayment of both principal and interest is expected and is 
in the  process of collection;  or (b) when an  individual  analysis  of a borrower’s  creditworthiness  indicates a  
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Note 1.  Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

credit should be placed on nonaccrual status. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest 
credited to income in the current year is reversed and unpaid interest accrued in prior years is charged against 
the allowance for loan losses. Future interest income may only be recorded on a cash basis after recovery of 
principal is reasonably assured. Nonaccrual loans are returned to accrual status when the financial position of 
the borrower and other relevant factors indicate there is no longer doubt as to such collectability.  

Charged-Off Loans.  Commercial loans and loans secured by real estate are generally charged-off when 
deemed uncollectible. A loss is recorded at that time if the net realizable value can be quantified and it is less 
than the associated principal and interest. Consumer loans that are not secured by real estate are subject to 
mandatory charge-off at a specified delinquency date and are usually not classified as non-accrual prior to 
being charged-off. Consumer loans, which include installment, automobile, and single payment loans are 
generally charged-off in full no later than the end of the month in which the loan becomes 120 days past due.  

Impaired Loans.  A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable 
that the Company will be unable to collect all contractual principal and interest due according to the terms of 
the loan agreement. Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows 
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or the value of the underlying collateral. The Company evaluates 
the collectability of both principal and interest when assessing the need for loss accrual.  

Troubled Debt Restructurings.  In cases where a borrower experiences financial difficulties and the Company 
makes certain concessionary modifications to contractual terms, the loan is classified as a troubled debt 
restructured loan. Loans restructured at a rate equal to or greater than that of a new loan with comparable risk 
at the time the contract is modified may be excluded from restructured loans in the calendar years subsequent 
to the restructuring if they are in compliance with modified terms. Generally, a nonaccrual loan that is a 
troubled debt restructuring remains on nonaccrual until such time that repayment of the remaining principal 
and interest is not in doubt, and the borrower has a period of satisfactory repayment performance.  

90-Day Past Due Loans. 90 days or more past due loans are loans for which principal or interest payments 
become 90 days or more past due but that still accrue interest since they are loans that are well secured and in 
the process of collection.  

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed adequate by 
management to absorb probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The allowance takes into consideration 
such factors as changes in the nature, volume, size and current risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, an 
assessment of individual problem loans, actual and anticipated loss experience, current economic conditions 
that affect the borrower’s ability to pay, and other pertinent factors. Determination of the allowance is 
inherently subjective, as it requires significant estimates, including the amounts and timing of expected future 
cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss 
experience, and consideration of current economic trends, all of which may be susceptible to significant 
change. Credit exposures deemed to be uncollectible are charged-off against the allowance, while recoveries of 
amounts previously charged-off are credited to the allowance. Additions to the allowance for loan losses are 
charged to operating expense through the provision for loan losses. The amount charged to operating expense 
in any given year is dependent upon a number of factors including historic loan growth and changes in the 
composition of the loan portfolio, net charge-off levels, and the Company’s assessment of the allowance for 
loan losses based on the methodology discussed below.  

The Company analyzes the historical loss data by risk rating categories.  A modified migration analysis is used 
where a one year look back window is utilized for each twelve month period to determine what the risk rating 
was at the  beginning of  each  period.  Historical  loss rate s are then  calculated  for three groups of risk rating  
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Note 1.  Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

categories. Qualitative factors utilized take into consideration: a) Levels of and trends in delinquencies and 
impaired loans; b) Levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; c) Trends in the volume and terms of 
loans; d) Effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards, and other changes in lending 
policies, procedures, and practices; e) Experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant 
staff; f) Industry conditions, as well as national and local economic trends and conditions; g) Effects of 
changes in credit concentrations; and h) Levels of and trends in past due and non-performing loans.  

The allowance for loan losses consists of estimations performed pursuant to GAAP requirements. The 
allowance for loan losses consists of specific reserves established for expected losses on individual loans for 
which the recorded investment in the loan exceeds the value of the loan and reserves based on historical loan 
loss experience for each loan category adjusted for other factors.  

The specific reserves component of the allowance for loan losses is based on a regular analysis of impaired 
loans exceeding a fixed dollar amount where the internal credit rating is at or below a predetermined 
classification. A loan is considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all 
contractual principal and interest due according to the terms of the loan agreement. Loans subject to 
impairment valuation are defined as non-accrual and restructured loans exclusive of smaller homogeneous 
loans. Impairment is measured by estimating the fair value of the loan based on the present value of expected 
future cash flows, discounted at the loan’s initial effective interest rate or the fair value of the underlying 
collateral less costs to sell, if repayment of the loan is collateral-dependent. If the estimated fair value of the 
loan is less than the recorded book value, a valuation allowance is established as a component of the allowance 
for loan losses.  

The component of the allowance for loan losses based on historical loan loss experience is determined 
mathematically using a modified loss migration analysis that examines loss experience over the most recent 3-
year period and the related internal grading of loans charged-off. The most recent of the 3-year period is 
weighted 50%, while the other 2 year periods are weighted 25%.  The modified loss migration analysis is 
performed quarterly and loss factors are updated regularly based on actual experience. The loss component 
based upon historical loss experience is adjusted for management’s estimate of those losses incurred within the 
loan portfolio, that have yet to be manifested in historical charge-off experience.  

The establishment of the allowance for loan losses involves a high degree of judgment and includes a level of 
imprecision given the difficulty of identifying all of the factors impacting loan repayment and the timing of 
when losses actually occur.  

Management considers the following when assessing the risk in the loan portfolio: 

� Commercial loans are dependent on the strength of the industries of the related borrowers and the 
success of their businesses.  Commercial loans are advances for equipment purchases or to 
provide working capital or meet other financing needs of business enterprises.  These loans may 
be secured by accounts receivable, inventory, equipment or other business assets.  At the time of 
origination, financial information is obtained from the borrower to evaluate ability to repay the 
loans and periodically obtained during the life of the loan.   

� Agriculture and Agriculture Real Estate are subject to adverse market conditions including 
changes in local or foreign demand, weather related reduction in output, impact on storage, 
distribution or use.  Increasing commodity prices leading to higher production costs, distribution 
or exporting. 
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� Commercial real estate loans and construction loans are dependent on the industries tied to these 
loans as well as the local commercial real estate market.  The loans are secured by the real estate, 
and appraisals are obtained to support the loan amount.  An evaluation of the project’s cash flows 
is performed to evaluate the borrower’s ability to repay the loan at the time of origination and 
periodically updated during the life of the loan. 

� 1-4 family residential real estate and home equity loans are affected by the local residential real 
estate market, the local economy, and, for variable rate mortgages, movement in indices tied to 
these loans.  At the time of origination the Bank evaluates the borrower’s repayment ability 
through a review of credit scores and debt to income ratios.  Appraisals are obtained to support 
the loan amount.  

� Consumer loans are subject to adverse employment conditions in the local economy which may 
lead to higher default rates.  Decreases in the value of underlying collateral effect the amount 
collected if a borrower defaults.   

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments to make loans and 
commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing needs.  The face amount for these items 
represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability to repay.  Such financial 
instruments are recorded when they are funded.  

Concentration of Credit Risk 

In the past, most of the Company’s growth and business activity with large dollar credit facilities is with 
customers located in St. Louis County, Missouri. Therefore, the Company’s exposure to credit risk is 
significantly affected by changes in the economy in the St. Louis County area.  Additionally, the Company has 
a high concentration of real estate development loans, which the Company is still working through. 

Mortgage Servicing Rights 

Servicing rights are recognized separately when they are acquired through sales of loans.  When mortgage 
loans are sold, servicing rights are initially recorded at fair value with the income statement effect recorded in 
gains on sales of loans.  Fair value is based on market prices for comparable mortgage servicing contracts, 
when available or alternatively, is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated 
future net servicing income.  All classes of servicing assets are subsequently measured using the amortization 
method which requires servicing rights to be amortized into non-interest income in proportion to, and over the 
period of, the estimated future net servicing income of the underlying loans. 

Servicing rights are evaluated for impairment based upon the fair value of the rights as compared to carrying 
amount. Impairment is determined by stratifying rights into groupings based on predominant risk 
characteristics, such as interest rate, loan type and investor type.  Impairment is recognized through a valuation 
allowance for an individual grouping, to the extent that fair value is less than the carrying amount.  If the 
Company later determines that all or a portion of the impairment no longer exists for a particular grouping, a 
reduction of the allowance may be recorded as an increase to income.  Changes in valuation allowances are 
reported with noninterest expense in the other expense line on the income (loss) statement.  The fair values of 
servicing rights are subject to significant fluctuations as a result of changes in estimated and actual prepayment 
speeds and default rates and losses.   
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Servicing fee income which is reported on the income (loss) statement as mortgage banking income is 
recorded for fees earned for servicing loans.  The fees are based on a contractual percentage of the outstanding 
principal; or a fixed amount per loan and are recorded as income when earned.  The amortization of mortgage 
servicing rights is netted against loan servicing fee income.   

Premises and Equipment 

Premises, furniture and equipment, and leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and land is carried at cost.  Depreciation expense is determined by the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the life of the asset or the lease term. Rates of depreciation are generally based on the following 
useful lives: buildings, 25 to 40 years; building improvements, typically 3 to 15 years but longer under limited 
circumstances; and furniture and equipment, 3 to 10 years. Gains and losses on dispositions are included in 
gains on sale of other assets in noninterest income on the Consolidated Statement of Income (Loss). 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expenses as incurred, while improvements that extend the 
useful life of assets are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated remaining life.  

Long-lived depreciable assets are evaluated periodically for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the expected 
undiscounted future cash flows of a long-lived asset are less than its carrying value. In that event, the Company 
recognizes a loss for the difference between the carrying amount and the estimated fair value of the asset based 
on a quoted market price, if applicable, or a discounted cash flow analysis. Impairment losses are recorded in 
other noninterest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income (Loss).  

Other Real Estate Owned 

Other real estate owned includes properties acquired in partial or total satisfaction of certain loans. Properties 
are initially recorded at fair value, which represents the estimated sales price of the properties on the date 
acquired less estimated selling costs, establishing a new cost basis. Any write-downs in the carrying value of a 
property at the time of acquisition are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Management periodically 
reviews the carrying value of other real estate owned. Any write-downs of the properties subsequent to 
acquisition, as well as gains or losses on disposition and income or expense from the operations of other real 
estate owned, are recognized in operating results in the period they are realized. 

Transfers of Financial Assets 

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been relinquished.  
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the 
Company, the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that 
right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and the Company does not maintain effective control over 
the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. 

Bank-Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI”) 

BOLI represents life insurance policies on the lives of certain current and former Company officers and 
directors for which the Company is the sole beneficiary. These policies are recorded as an asset on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at their cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that 
are probable at settlement. The change in cash surrender value and insurance proceeds received are recorded as 
bank-owned life insurance income on the Consolidated Statement of Income (Loss) in noninterest income. 
Management  performs a monthly analysis to  determine the current cash surrender value  and adjusts the value  
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accordingly. These policies have an approximate cash surrender value of $32.4 million and $31.4 million at 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Other Intangible Assets 

Other intangible assets represent purchased assets that also lack physical substance but can be distinguished 
from goodwill because of contractual or other legal rights or because the asset is capable of being sold or 
exchanged either on its own or in combination with a related contract, asset, or liability. Identified intangible 
assets that have a finite useful life are amortized over that life in a manner that reflects the estimated decline in 
the economic value of the identified intangible asset. Identified intangible assets that have a finite useful life 
are periodically reviewed to determine whether there have been any events or circumstances to indicate that 
the recorded amount is not recoverable from projected undiscounted net operating cash flows. If the projected 
undiscounted net operating cash flows are less than the carrying amount, a loss is recognized to reduce the 
carrying amount to fair value, and, when appropriate, the amortization period is also reduced. Unamortized 
intangible assets associated with disposed assets are included in the determination of gain or loss on the sale of 
the disposed assets.  

Other intangible assets consist of core deposit and acquired customer relationship intangible assets arising 
from whole bank and branch company acquisitions.  They are initially measured at fair value and then are 
amortized over ten years using an accelerated method.  Management reviews intangible assets at least annually 
for impairment and any such impairment will be recognized in the period identified. 

Repurchase agreements 

Substantially all repurchase agreement liabilities represent amounts advanced by various customers.  Securities are 
pledged to cover these liabilities, which are not covered by federal deposit insurance. 

Mortgage Banking Derivatives   

Commitments to fund mortgage loans (interest rate locks) to be sold into the secondary market and forward 
commitments for the future delivery of these mortgage loans are accounted for as free standing derivatives.  
Fair values of these mortgage derivatives are estimated based on changes in mortgage interest rates from the 
date the interest on the loan is locked.  The Company enters into forward commitments for the future delivery 
of mortgage loans when interest rate locks are entered into, in order to hedge the change in interest rates 
resulting from its commitments to fund the loans.  Changes in the fair values of these derivatives are included 
in net gains on sales of loans. 

Income Taxes 

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and in Illinois and Missouri. The 
provision for income taxes is based on income in the financial statements, rather than amounts reported on the 
Company’s income tax return. Changes in enacted tax rates and laws are reflected in the financial statements in 
the periods they occur. The Company recognizes interest related to income tax matters as interest expense and 
penalties related to income tax matters as other expense.   

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences 
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax 
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable 
income in years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation 
allowance is established for  any deferred tax asset for which  recovery or  settlement is unlikely. The effect on  
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deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized as income or expense in the period that 
includes the enactment date.  

A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax position would be 
sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the 
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions 
not meeting the “more likely than not” test, no tax benefit is recorded.  

The Company is no longer subject to examination by federal taxing authorities for the tax year 2008 and the 
years prior. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

Compensation cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock awards issued to employees, based on 
the fair value of these awards at the date of grant.  A Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair value 
of the stock options, while the market price of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant is used for 
restricted stock awards.  Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period, generally defined 
as the vesting period.  For awards with graded vesting, compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis 
over the requisite service period for the entire award. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions.  
Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit 
risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items.  Changes 
in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates. See Note 4 for additional 
information. 

Stockholders' Equity 

Preferred Stock 

The Company's Certificate of Incorporation authorizes its board of directors to fix or alter the rights, 
preferences, privileges, and restrictions of 200,000 shares of preferred stock.    

The Company has the following classes of preferred stock issued or authorized:  

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock:  The Company has authorized 2,765 shares of Series A Convertible 
Preferred Stock.  There were 2,762.24 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2012 and 2011.  Preferential cumulative cash dividends are payable quarterly at an annual rate 
of $75.00 per share.  Dividends accrue on each share of Series A Preferred Stock from the date of issuance and 
from day to day thereafter, whether or not earned or declared.  The shares of Series A Preferred Stock are 
convertible into 172,042 common shares.  Series A Preferred Stock is not redeemable for cash.  Upon 
dissolution,  winding up, or liquidation of the Company, voluntary or otherwise, holders of Series A Preferred 
Stock will be entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to stockholders, the 
amount of $1,000 per share, plus any accrued but unpaid dividends, before any payment or distribution may be 
made on shares of common stock or any other securities issued by the Company that rank junior to the 
Series A Preferred Stock. 
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Series B Mandatory Redeemable Preferred Stock:  The Company has authorized 1,092 shares of Series B 
Mandatory Redeemable Preferred Stock.  There were 268 shares of Series B Mandatory Redeemable Preferred  
Stock issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively, which are shown in other liabilities 
in accordance with accounting guidance.  Preferential cumulative cash dividends are payable quarterly at an 
annual rate of $60.00 per share.  Dividends accrue on each share of Series B Preferred Stock from the date of 
issuance and from day to day, thereafter, whether or not earned or declared.   

Each original holder of Series B Preferred Stock (or upon such holder's death, their executor or personal 
representatives) will have the option, exercisable at their sole discretion, to sell, and the Company be obligated 
to redeem such holder's shares of Series B Preferred Stock.  The per share price payable by the Company for 
such shares of Series B Preferred Stock will be equal to $1,000 per share, plus any accrued but unpaid 
dividends.  Upon dissolution, wind up, or liquidation of the Company, voluntary or otherwise, holders of 
Series B Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Company available for distribution 
to stockholders, the amount of $1,000 per share, plus any accrued but unpaid dividends, before any payment or 
distribution may be made on shares of common stock or any other securities issued by the Company that rank 
junior to the Series B Preferred Stock. 

Series C Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock:   The Company has authorized 32,668 shares of Series 
C Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock with a $1,000 per share liquidation preference, and a warrant 
to purchase up to 508,320 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $9.64 per share.  There 
were 32,668 shares of Series C Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2012 and 2011.   Dividends accrue on each share of Series C Preferred Stock from the date of 
issuance.   Management is accreting the discount on the preferred stock over a five year life using an effective 
yield. 

The Series C Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock issued by the Company pays cumulative dividends 
of 5% a year for the first five years and 9% a year effective beginning January 9, 2014 and thereafter.  The 
Company may, at its option, redeem the preferred securities at their liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid 
dividends at any time. Both the preferred securities and the warrant are accounted for as components of regulatory 
Tier 1 capital. The securities purchase agreement, between the Company and the Treasury, limits the payment of 
dividends on the Common Stock to a quarterly cash dividend of $0.14 per share, limits the Company's ability to 
repurchase its Common Stock, and subjects the Company to certain executive compensation limitations.  

Dividend Restrictions 

Banking regulations require the maintenance of certain capital levels and may limit the amount of dividends 
that may be paid by the subsidiary bank to the holding company or by the holding company to stockholders.   
As discussed in Note 16, the Company and the Bank are prohibited from declaring dividends. 

Loss Contingencies 

Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded 
as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably 
estimated.  Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have a material effect on the 
financial statements.   

Comprehensive Income 

Comprehensive income is the total of reported net income and all other revenues, expenses, gains, and losses 
that bypass reported net income under GAAP. As of December 31, 2012, the Company included unrealized 
gains or losses on securities available-for-sale in other comprehensive income. 
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Treasury Stock 

Treasury stock acquired is recorded at cost and is carried as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Treasury stock issued is valued based on the “last in, first out” inventory 
method. The difference between the consideration received upon issuance and the carrying value is charged or 
credited to surplus.  

Subsequent Events 

The Corporation has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosures through March 12, 2013, 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.   

Reclassifications 

Certain prior year account balances, with no effect on net income (loss) or stockholders’ equity, have been 
reclassified to be consistent with the classifications adopted as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

In July 2012, the FASB amended existing guidance relating to testing indefinite-lived intangible assets for 
impairment.  The amendment permits an assessment of qualitative factors to determine whether the existence 
of events and circumstances indicates that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is 
impaired.  If, after assessing the totality of events and circumstances, it is concluded that it is not more likely 
than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired, then no further action is required.  However, after 
the same assessment, if it is concluded that it is more like than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is 
impaired, then a quantitative impairment test should be performed whereby the fair value of the indefinite-
lived intangible asset is compared to the carrying amount.  The amendments in this guidance are effective for 
annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012.  Early 
adoption is permitted.  The effect of early adopting this standard did not have a material effect on the 
Company’s operating results or financial condition. 

In June 2011, the FASB amended existing guidance and eliminated the option to present the components of 
other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholder’s equity. The amendment 
requires that comprehensive income be presented in either a single continuous statement or in two separate 
consecutive statements. The amendments in this guidance are effective for annual reporting periods ending 
after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this amendment has changed the presentation of the components of 
comprehensive income for the Company. 
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Note 2.  Securities  

The following table summarizes the fair value of available-for-sale securities, the related gross unrealized 
gains and losses recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, and the amortized cost as follows: 

December 31, 2012 
     Gross   Gross    
  Amortized   Unrealized   Unrealized  Fair 

  Cost   Gains   Losses  Value
U.S. government agencies $  6,737 $  60 $  - $  6,797 
States and political subdivisions   13,921    764    -   14,685 
U.S. government agency residential 
     mortgage-backed securities   134,649    2,870    (97)   137,422 
Collateralized residential mortgage obligations: 
    Agency   19,944    177    -   20,121 
    Private label  830  31  -  861 
Equity securities   2,470    261    -   2,731 
Collateralized debt obligations: 
    Single issue   2,064    -   -   2,064 
    Pooled  7,463  1,494  (1,213)  7,744 

Corporate    2,000    10    -   2,010 

$  190,078 $  5,667 $  (1,310) $  194,435 

December 31, 2011 
     Gross   Gross  
  Amortized   Unrealized   Unrealized  Fair 
  Cost   Gains   Losses  Value
U.S. government agencies $  2,931 $  88 $  - $  3,019 
States and political subdivisions   17,477    649    (1)   18,125 
U.S. government agency residential 
     mortgage-backed securities   174,850    2,790    (101)   177,539 
Collateralized residential mortgage obligations: 
    Agency   15,298    229    -   15,527 
    Private label  1,485  72  (7)  1,550 
Equity securities   2,396    134    -   2,530 
Collateralized debt obligations: 
    Single issue   2,064    -   -   2,064 
    Pooled  8,121  53  (1,574)  6,600 
Corporate    2,000    -   (118)   1,882 

$  226,622 $  4,015 $  (1,801) $  228,836 

The amounts below include the activity for available-for-sale securities related to sales, maturities and calls: 
   Years Ended December 31, 
        2012   2011 
Proceeds from calls and maturities $  12,665 $  22,685 
Proceeds from sales         48,429    35,287 
Realized gains  1,400  1,157 
Realized losses         (2)   -
Net impairment loss recognized in earnings  -  (499)
Tax benefit (provision) related            
     to net realized gains and losses  (543)  (254)
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Note 2.  Securities (Continued) 

The amortized cost and fair value of the investment securities portfolio are shown below by contractual 
maturity.  Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities if borrowers have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

   

December 31, 2012 
 Amortized   Fair 
 Cost   Value 

Due in one year or less $  2,210 $  2,238 
Due after one year through five years   14,914    15,344 
Due after five years through ten years  5,257  5,620 
Due after ten years   9,804    10,098 
U.S. government agency residential mortgage-backed securities  134,649  137,422 
Collateralized residential mortgage obligations   20,774    20,982 
Equity  2,470  2,731 

$  190,078  $  194,435 

At December 31, 2012, the Company held callable securities with a fair value and amortized cost of $21.1 
million and $20.0 million, respectively. At December 31, 2011, the Company held callable securities with a 
fair value and amortized cost of $16.8 million and $18.3 million, respectively. 

Securities with carrying values of approximately $136.4 million and $124.5 million at December 31, 2012 and 
2011, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 
and for other purposes as required or permitted by law.  The Company does not have any securities classified 
as trading or held-to-maturity.  

Securities with unrealized losses not recognized in income are as follows presented by length of time 
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position:   

   

December 31, 2012 

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More   Total 
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized  Fair   Unrealized

  Value Loss Value Loss   Value   Loss 
U.S. government agency residential  
     mortgage-backed securities $  22,869  $  (97) $  - $  - $  22,869  $  (97)
Collateralized debt obligations:  pooled  -  -  2,159  (1,213)  2,159  (1,213)

Total temporarily impaired $  22,869  $  (97) $  2,159  $  (1,213) $  25,028  $  (1,310)

   

December 31, 2011 

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More   Total 
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized  Fair   Unrealized

  Value Loss Value Loss   Value   Loss 
State and political subdivisions $  524 $  (1) $  - $  - $  524 $  (1)
U.S. government agency residential                   
     mortgage-backed securities  30,895  (101)  -  -  30,895  (101)
Collateralized residential mortgage                   
     obligations: private label  731  (7)  -  -  731  (7)
Collateralized debt obligations:  pooled   -   -   6,497    (1,574)   6,497    (1,574)
Corporate  1,882  (118)  -  -  1,882  (118)

Total temporarily impaired $  34,032  $  (227) $  6,497  $  (1,574) $  40,529  $  (1,801)
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Note 2.  Securities (Continued) 

Unrealized losses on agency bonds have not been recognized into income because the issuer(s) bonds are of 
high credit quality (rated AA or higher), management does not intend to sell and it is not more likely than not 
that management would be required to sell the securities prior to their anticipated recovery, and the decline in 
fair value is largely due to changes in interest rates.  The fair value is expected to recover as the bonds(s) 
approach maturity. 

At December 31, 2012, approximately 86.75% of the mortgage-backed securities held by the Company were 
issued by U.S. government-sponsored enterprises and agencies, primarily Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, 
institutions which the government has affirmed its commitment to support.  Because the decline in fair value is 
attributable to changes in interest rates and illiquidity, and not credit quality, and because the Company does 
not intend to sell these mortgage-backed securities and it is likely that it will not be required to sell the 
securities before their anticipated recovery, the Company does not consider these securities to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012. 

The Company’s mortgage-backed securities portfolio includes two private labeled collateralized mortgage 
obligations with a market value of $0.9 million and unrealized gains of $0.03 million at December 31, 2012.  
The Company monitors to insure it has adequate credit support and has taken other than temporary impairment 
(“OTTI”) charges in prior years to insure proper credit support.  During 2012 and 2011, no OTTI was realized 
on the two non-agency CMO instruments.  For the remaining mortgage-backed securities, the Company 
believes there is no OTTI and does not have the intent to sell these securities and it is likely that it will not be 
required to sell the securities before their anticipated recovery. 

The Company’s unrealized losses relate primarily to its investment in pooled trust preferred securities included 
in collateralized debt obligations (“CDO”). The decline in fair value is primarily attributable to temporary 
illiquidity and the financial crisis affecting these markets and not the expected cash flows of the individual 
securities. Due to the illiquidity in the market, it is unlikely that the Company would be able to recover its 
investment in these securities if the Company sold the securities at this time. 

Our OTTI evaluation model includes the seven CDOs making up this portfolio with a $7.5million amortized 
cost, after impairment.  These securities were rated high quality (A3 and above) at inception, but at December 
31, 2012, these securities were rated as Ca and C, which are defined as highly speculative and/or default, with 
some recovery; and Ba2, which is one level below investment grade.  The issuers in these securities are 
primarily banks, but some of the pools do include a limited number of insurance companies.  The Company 
uses the OTTI evaluation model to compare the present value of expected cash flows to the previous estimate 
to ensure there are no adverse changes in cash flows during the period.  The OTTI model considers the 
structure and term of the CDO and the financial condition of the underlying issuers in addition to detailing 
interest rates, principal balances of note classes and underlying issuers, the timing and amount of interest and 
principal payments of the underlying issuers, and the allocation of the payments to the note classes. The 
current estimate of expected cash flows is based on the most recent trustee reports and any other relevant 
market information including announcements of interest payment deferrals or defaults of underlying trust 
preferred securities.  Assumptions used in the model include expected future default rates and prepayments.  
We assume no recoveries on defaults and treat all interest payment deferrals as defaults.  In addition we use the 
model to “stress” each CDO, or make assumptions more severe than expected activity, to determine the degree 
to which assumptions could deteriorate before the CDO could no longer fully support repayment of the 
Company’s note class.  For the year ended December 31, 2012, our model indicated no OTTI was necessary. 
Of the seven CDOs, two of them are at an unrealized loss of $1.2 million, another two had all their book value 
impaired in a prior year and the remaining three have an unrealized gain position of $1.5 million. For the year 
ended December 31, 2011, our model indicated OTTI of $0.5 million on three of the seven CDOs, all of which 
experienced additional defaults or deferrals and/or prepayments during the period in which the OTTI was 
recognized.  Two of these CDOs had all of their remaining book value impaired.  These securities remained 
classified as available for sale at December 31, 2011, and together, the five remaining securities accounted for 
$1.6 million of the unrealized loss in the other securities category at December 31, 2011. 
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Note 2.  Securities (Continued) 

The following table below presents a roll forward of the credit losses recognized in earnings for the years 
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

   

 2012   2011 
Beginning balance, January 1, $  20,597 $  20,362 
     Amounts related to credit loss for which       
         an other-than-temporary impairment was not previously recognized  -  -
Additions/Subtractions      
     Amounts realized for securities sold during the period  -  -
     Amounts related to securities for which the company       
         intends to sell or that it will be more likely than not that the company 
         will be required to sell prior to recovery of amortized cost basis   -   -
     Reductions for increase in cash flows expected to be 
         collected that are recognized over the remaining life of the security   -   (264)
     Increases to the amount related to the credit 

         loss for which other-than-temporary was previously recognized   -   499 

Ending balance, December 31, $  20,597 $  20,597 

Note 3.  Loans 

The major classifications of loans follow: 

 Aggregate Principal Amount 

 December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011

Commercial $ 59,639 $ 63,982

Agricultural & AGRE   46,584    39,128

Construction, land & development  25,216  42,008

Commercial RE   298,960    288,068

1-4 family mortgages  125,728  146,767

Consumer   2,887    2,442

Total Loans $  559,014 $  582,395

Allowance for loan losses   (18,948)   (21,232)

Loans, net $  540,066 $  561,163

The credit quality indicator utilized by the company to internally analyze the loan portfolio is the internal risk 
rating.  Internal risk ratings of 0 to 5 are considered pass credits, a risk rating of a 6 is special mention, a risk 
rating of a 7 is substandard, and a risk rating of an 8 is doubtful. Loans classified as pass credits have no 
material weaknesses and are performing as agreed.  Loans classified as special mention have a potential 
weakness that deserves management's close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may 
result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the institution's credit position at some 
future date.  Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying 
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or 
weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the 
institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans classified as doubtful have all the 
weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make 
collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly 
questionable and improbable.
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Note 3.  Loans (Continued)

The following table presents the commercial loan portfolio by internal risk rating: 

December 31, 2012                   
Commercial        Commercial Real Estate    

Internal 
Risk 

Rating  Closed-end  
Lines of 
Credit  

Agriculture 
& AG RE  

Construction, 
Land & 

Development  
Owner-

Occupied  
Non-Owner 
Occupied  Total 

1-2 $  972 $  190 $ 5,532 $ - $ 3,021 $  617 $ 10,332
3    1,432    12,503    16,175    650    10,572    13,252    54,584
4  6,792  9,562  17,135  1,610  84,955  63,479  183,533
5    8,687    10,808    7,516    12,566    19,700    54,210    113,487
6  546  3,864  67  161  5,126  13,297  23,061
7    3,252    1,031    159    10,229    15,220    15,511    45,402
8  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Total  $  21,681  $  37,958  $ 46,584 $ 25,216 $ 138,594 $  160,366  $ 430,399

December 31, 2011                   
Commercial        Commercial Real Estate    

Internal 
Risk 

Rating  Closed-end  
Lines of 
Credit  

Agriculture 
& AG RE  

Construction, 
Land & 

Development  
Owner-

Occupied  
Non-Owner 
Occupied  Total 

1-2 $  716 $  449 $ 4,833 $ 3,649 $ 3,489 $  647 $ 13,783
3    2,938    7,708    15,649    1,034    8,971    17,168    53,468
4  12,989  13,533  14,323  1,566  68,045  44,665  155,121
5    10,405    5,322    3,517    6,200    20,518    51,580    97,542
6  3,374  3,892  741  5,497  10,868  19,900  44,272
7    1,434    1,222    65    24,062    19,720    22,497    69,000
8  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Total  $  31,856  $  32,126  $ 39,128 $ 42,008 $ 131,611 $  156,457  $ 433,186

The following table presents the Retail Residential Loan Portfolio by Internal Risk Rating: 

 Residential -- 1-4 family 

 Senior Lien  
Jr. Lien & Lines 

of Credit  Total 
December 31, 2012 

Unrated $  65,809  $  47,614  $  113,423
Special mention  536  892  1,428
Substandard   10,400    477    10,877
Doubtful  -  -  -

Total $ 76,745 $ 48,983  $ 125,728
December 31, 2011 

Unrated $  83,969  $  49,498  $  133,467
Special mention  907  904  1,811
Substandard   10,013    1,161    11,174
Doubtful  315  -  315

Total $ 95,204 $ 51,563  $ 146,767
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Note 3.  Loans (Continued) 

The retail residential loan portfolio is generally unrated.  Delinquency is a typical factor in adversely risk 
rating a credit to a special mention or substandard. 

An analysis of activity in the allowance for loan losses follows: 
   

 Commercial 
Agriculture 
& AG RE

Construction, 
Land & 

Development
Commercial 

RE
1-4 Family 
Residential  Consumer Total 

December 31, 2012 
Beginning Balance $  1,590  $  5 $  4,811 $  11,680 $  3,090  $  56 $  21,232

Charge-offs  (474)  (30)  (4,888)  (5,046)  (2,523)  (8)  (12,969)
Recoveries   70    54   297   409   118    12  960
Provision  646  65  1,990  3,434  3,612  (22)  9,725

Ending Balance $  1,832  $ 94 $ 2,210 $ 10,477 $ 4,297  $  38 $ 18,948
December 31, 2011 

Beginning Balance $  1,634  $  337 $  12,500 $  13,721 $  3,273  $  46 $  31,511
Charge-offs  (713)  (674)  (10,610)  (9,349)  (1,835)  (97)  (23,278)
Recoveries   49    26   755   305   465    24  1,624
Provision  620  316  2,166  7,003  1,187  83  11,375

Ending Balance $  1,590  $ 5 $ 4,811 $ 11,680 $ 3,090  $  56 $ 21,232

   

December 31, 2012 Commercial 
Agriculture 
& AG RE  

Construction,
Land & 

Development 
Commercial 

RE  
1-4 Family 
Residential  Consumer  Total 

Allowance for loan losses: 

Loans individually evaluated for 
impairment $  1,241  $  - $  1,299  $  7,887  $  2,444  $  1  $  12,872 

Loans collectively evaluated for 
impairment  591  94  911  2,590  1,853  37  6,076 

Total ending allowance balance: $  1,832  $  94  $  2,210  $  10,477  $  4,297  $  38  $  18,948 

                    

Loan balances: 

Loans individually evaluated for 
impairment $  4,129  $  159  $  10,229  $  30,608  $  10,829  $  3  $  55,957 

Loans collectively evaluated for 
impairment  55,510  46,425  14,987  268,352  114,899  2,884  503,057 

Loans with an allowance recorded: $  59,639  $  46,584  $  25,216  $  298,960  $  125,728  $  2,887  $  559,014 
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Note 3.  Loans (Continued) 
   

December 31, 2011 Commercial 
Agriculture 
& AG RE  

Construction,
Land & 

Development
Commercial 

RE  
1-4 Family 
Residential  Consumer  Total 

Allowance for loan losses: 
Loans individually evaluated for 

impairment $  715  $  - $  2,228  $  5,211  $  1,591  $  5  $  9,750 
Loans collectively evaluated for 

impairment  875  5  2,583  6,469  1,499  51  11,482 

Total ending allowance balance: $  1,590  $  5  $  4,811  $  11,680  $  3,090  $  56  $  21,232 

Loan balances: 
Loans individually evaluated for 

impairment $  2,463  $  65  $  24,062  $  36,141  $  10,563  $  5  $  73,299 
Loans collectively evaluated for 

impairment  61,519  39,063  17,946  251,927  136,204  2,437  509,096 

Loans with an allowance recorded: $  63,982  $  39,128  $  42,008  $  288,068  $  146,767  $  2,442  $  582,395 

Troubled Debt Restructurings:   

The Company had troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”) of $4.2 million and $7.1 million as of December 31, 
2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.  Specific reserves of $0.2 million and $0.95 million were allocated 
to TDRs as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.  At December 31, 2012, nonaccrual 
TDR loans were $4.1 million, as compared to $6.0 million at December 31, 2011.  At December 31, 2012 and 
December 31, 2011, $0.1 million and $1.1 million of TDRs were on accrual status.  The Company has not 
committed to lend any additional amounts to customers with outstanding loans that are classified as TDRs as 
of December 31, 2012. 

During the period ending December 31, 2012, the terms of certain loans were modified as troubled debt 
restructurings.  The modification of the terms of such loans included one or a combination of the following: a 
reduction of the stated interest rate of the loan to a below market rate or the payment modification to interest 
only.  Modifications involving a reduction of the stated interest rate of the loan were for periods ranging from 
6 months to 16 months.   

The following tables present loans by class modified as troubled debt restructurings that occurred during the 
years ending December 31, 2012 and 2011: 

   

 For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2012 

Number of 
Loans  

Pre-
Modification 

d d

Post-
Modification 

d dCommercial 
Closed-end   -  $  -  $  -
Line of credit  -  -  -

Agricultural & AG RE   -    -    -
Construction, land & development  2  86  86
CRE - all other         

Owner occupied  1  358  358
Non-owner occupied   1    892    892

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien   -    -    -
Jr. lien & lines of credit  1  46  46

Consumer   -    -    -
Total  5 $  1,382 $  1,382
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Note 3.  Loans (Continued) 

The troubled debt restructurings described above increased the allowance for loan losses by $0.15 million and 
resulted in charge offs of $0.5 million during the year ending December 31, 2012.

   

 For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2011 

Number of 
Loans  

Pre-
Modification 

d d

Post-
Modification 

d dCommercial 
Closed-end   -  $  -  $  -
Line of credit  -  -  -

Agricultural & AG RE   -    -    -
Construction, land & development  2  72  72
CRE - all other         

Owner occupied  2  1,726  1,726
Non-owner occupied   -    -    -

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien   3    57    57
Jr. lien & lines of credit  1  8  8

Consumer   -    -    -
Total  8 $  1,863 $  1,863

The troubled debt restructurings described above increased the allowance for loan losses by $0.6 million and 
resulted in no charge offs during the twelve month period ending December 31, 2011. 

A loan is considered to be in payment default once it is 90 days contractually past due under the modified 
terms.  There were no loans modified as troubled debt restructurings for which there was a payment default 
within twelve months following the modification during the twelve month period ending December 31, 2012.  
In 2011 there was a default on a TDR that was within twelve months of becoming a TDR.  This default did not 
increase the allowance for loan losses but resulted in a charge off of $0.4 million for the twelve month period 
ended December 31, 2011.    

The Company evaluates loan modifications to determine if the modification constitutes a troubled debt 
restructure. A loan modification constitutes a troubled debt restructure if the borrower is experiencing financial 
difficulty and the Company grants a concession it would not otherwise consider. In order to determine whether 
a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, an evaluation is performed of the probability that the borrower 
will be in payment default on any of its loans with the Company’s debt in the foreseeable future without the 
modification. This evaluation is performed under the Company’s internal underwriting guidelines.  TDRs are 
separately identified for impairment disclosures.  If a loan is considered to be collateral dependent loan, the 
TDR is reported, net, at the fair value of the collateral. 
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Note 3.  Loans (Continued) 

The following tables present data on impaired loans: 
   

December 31, 2012 
Recorded

Investment  

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance

Related 
Allowance  

Average 
Recorded

Investment  

Interest 
Income 

Recognized  

Cash Basis 
Interest 

Recognized
Loans with no related allowance recorded:

Commercial                   
Closed-end $  71 $  94 $  - $  97 $  1 $  1
Line of credit    81    81    -    48    5    5

Agricultural & AG RE  159  159  -  62  5  5
Construction, land & development    1,520    6,627    -    3,387    15    13
CRE - all other 

Owner occupied    4,693    4,795    -    4,644    35    33
Non-owner occupied  4,866  4,866  -  4,745  320  293

1-4 family residential                   
Senior lien  1,592  2,197  -  1,335  12  10
Jr. lien & lines of credit    301    497    -    262    12    11

Consumer  2  2  -  1  -  -
Subtotal    13,285 19,318 - 14,581    405  371

Loans with an allowance recorded:                
Commercial 

Closed-end  $  3,027  $  3,027  $  949  $  2,559  $  118  $  111
Line of credit  950  1,050  292  1,128  -  (10)

Agricultural & AG RE    -    -    -    62    -    -
Construction, land & development  8,709  12,542  1,299  12,642  79  77
CRE - all other                   

Owner occupied  10,404  11,215  4,498  10,858  379  366
Non-owner occupied    10,645    10,714    3,389    10,560    356    315

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien    8,808    9,363    2,388    7,882    327    302
Jr. lien & lines of credit  128  159  56  426  6  6

Consumer    1    1    1    2    -    -
Subtotal  42,672  48,071  12,872  46,119  1,265  1,167

Total  $  55,957  $  67,389  $  12,872  $  60,700  $  1,670  $  1,538

Commercial  $  45,125  $  55,170  $  10,427  $  50,792  $  1,313  $  1,209

Residential $  10,829 $  12,216 $  2,444 $  9,905 $  357 $  329

Consumer  $  3  $  3  $  1  $  3  $  -  $  -
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Note 3.  Loans (Continued) 
   

December 31, 2011 
Recorded

Investment  

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance

Related 
Allowance  

Average 
Recorded

Investment  

Interest 
Income 

Recognized  

Cash Basis 
Interest 

Recognized
Loans with no related allowance recorded:

Commercial                   
Closed-end $  28 $  28 $  - $  53 $  1 $  1
Line of credit    45    308    -    550    -    -

Agricultural & AG RE  65  682  -  62  3  3
Construction, land & development    4,453    14,583    -    10,066    58    58
CRE - all other 

Owner occupied    4,738    5,417    -    6,284    44    41
Non-owner occupied  7,749  8,656  -  11,933  442  416

1-4 family residential                   
Senior lien  1,108  1,576  -  2,198  37  37
Jr. lien & lines of credit    683    799    -    697    17    16

Consumer  -  -  -  -  -  -
Subtotal    18,869 32,049 - 31,843    602  572

Loans with an allowance recorded:                
Commercial 

Closed-end  $  1,213  $  1,213  $  449  $  1,380  $  84  $  84
Line of credit  1,177  1,177  266  2,337  25  14

Agricultural & AG RE    -    -    -    1,039    -    -
Construction, land & development  19,609  30,053  2,228  19,749  (26)  (27)
CRE - all other                   

Owner occupied  14,851  15,204  3,678  13,152  850  773
Non-owner occupied    8,803    11,142    1,533    11,632    383    353

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien    8,396    8,580    1,391    8,062    693    677
Jr. lien & lines of credit  375  482  200  386  9  9

Consumer    6    6    5    4    -    -
Subtotal  54,430  67,857  9,750  57,741  2,018  1,883

Total  $  73,299  $  99,906  $  9,750  $  89,584  $  2,620  $  2,455

Commercial  $  62,731  $  88,463  $  8,154  $  78,237  $  1,864  $  1,716

Residential $  10,562 $  11,437 $  1,591 $  11,343 $  756 $  739

Consumer  $  6  $  6  $  5  $  4  $  -  $  -

Due to the economic conditions facing many of its customers, the Company determined that there were $12.8 
million of loans that were classified as impaired but were considered to be performing loans (i.e. loans which 
are accruing interest) at December 31, 2012 compared to $28.6 million at December 31, 2011.  
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Note 3.  Loans (Continued) 

The following table represents activity related to loan portfolio aging: 
   

December 31, 2012 

30 - 59 
Days Past 

Due  

60 - 89 
Days Past 

Due  

90 Days 
Past Due or 
Nonaccrual  

Total Past 
Due  Current  Total Loans

Commercial 
Closed-end  $  7  $  -  $  1,658  $  1,665  $  20,016  $  21,681
Line of credit  182  -  1,011  1,193  36,765  37,958

Agricultural & AG RE    -    -    159    159    46,425    46,584
Construction, land 

& development  136  -  8,920  9,056  16,160  25,216
CRE - all other                   

Owner occupied  2,584  -  12,955  15,539  123,055  138,594
Non-owner occupied    279    748    5,239    6,266    154,100    160,366

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien    1,825    313    7,292    9,430    67,315    76,745
Jr. lien & lines of credit  450  139  289  878  48,105  48,983

Consumer    7    -    -    7    2,880    2,887
Total $  5,470 $ 1,200 $ 37,523 $ 44,193 $  514,821 $ 559,014

December 31, 2011             
Commercial 

Closed-end  $  1,183  $  -  $  95  $  1,278  $  30,578  $  31,856
Line of credit  -  43  1,222  1,265  30,861  32,126

Agricultural & AG RE    -    -    65    65    39,063    39,128
Construction, land 

& development  -  472  23,738  24,210  17,798  42,008
CRE - all other                -    

Owner occupied  2,477  1,357  8,633  12,467  119,144  131,611
Non-owner occupied    3,207    3,000    6,572    12,779    143,678    156,457

1-4 family residential  - 
Senior lien    2,832    691    3,588    7,111    88,093    95,204
Jr. lien & lines of credit  738  151  806  1,695  49,868  51,563

Consumer    10    -    4    14    2,428    2,442
Total $  10,447 $ 5,714 $ 44,723 $ 60,884 $  521,511 $ 582,395

At the periods ending December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, there were no loans 90 days past due or 
greater that were still accruing interest.  
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Note 3.  Loans (Continued) 

The following tables represent data for nonperforming loans: 

 For the period ended 

 December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011 

Commercial 

Closed-end  $  1,658 $  95 

Line of credit  1,011  1,222 

Agricultural & AG RE    159   65 

Construction, land & development  8,920  23,738 

CRE - all other       

Owner occupied  12,955  8,633 

Non-owner occupied    5,239   6,572 

1-4 family residential 

Senior lien    7,292   3,588 

Jr. lien & lines of credit  289  806 

Consumer    -   4 

Total $  37,523 $  44,723 

Nonperforming loans include both smaller balance homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for 
impairment and individually classified impaired loans.  

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, loans to executive officers, directors, and their affiliates were $1.0 million 
and $1.9 million, respectively.

Note 4.  Fair Value 

The Company measures, monitors, and discloses certain of its assets and liabilities on a fair value basis. Fair 
value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  

The Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when 
measuring fair value. Fair value guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to 
measure fair value into three broad levels based on the reliability of the input assumptions. The hierarchy gives 
the highest priority to level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to level 3 measurements and the 
categorization of where an asset or liability falls within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:  

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities traded in active markets.  

Level 2 – Observable inputs other than level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar instruments; quoted 
prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable 
market data for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.  

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the 
fair value of the assets or liabilities.  
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Note 4.  Fair Value (Continued) 

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate the fair value of each type 
of financial instrument: 

Securities 

Available for Sale Securities.  The fair value of securities available for sale is determined by obtaining quoted 
prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges (Level 1 inputs) or matrix pricing, which is a 
mathematical technique widely used in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on 
quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities’ relationship to other benchmark 
quoted securities (Level 2 inputs).  If the securities could not be priced using quoted market  prices, observable 
market activity or comparable trades, the financial market was considered not active and the assets were 
classified as Level 3.   

Pooled Trust Preferred Collateralized Debt Obligations (“CDO”).  The assets included in Level 3 are CDOs.  
Over the past few years, the decline in the level of observable inputs and market activity for trust preferred 
CDOs by the measurement date was significant and resulted in unreliable external pricing.  As such, the 
Company uses an internal other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) evaluation model to compare the 
present value of expected cash flows to the previous estimate to ensure there are no adverse changes in cash 
flows during the quarter.  The OTTI model considers the structure and term of each CDO and the financial 
condition of the underlying issuers.  Specifically, the model details interest rates, principal balances of note 
classes and  underlying issuers, the timing and amount of  interest and principal payments of the underlying 
issuers, and the allocation of the payments to the note classes.  The current estimate of expected cash flows is 
based on the most recent trustee reports and any other relevant market information including announcements of 
interest payment deferrals or defaults of underlying trust-preferred securities. Assumptions used in the model 
include expected future default rates and prepayments.  

The Company assumes no recoveries on defaults and treats all interest payment deferrals as defaults.   In 
addition, we use the model to “stress” each CDO, or make assumptions more severe than expected activity, to 
determine the degree to which assumptions could deteriorate before the CDO could no longer fully support 
repayment of the Company’s note class.  

Each issuer in the tranche was analyzed using the Fitch ratings for the quarter and key financial data so that the 
issuer in each tranche can be divided between a pool of “performing” companies and “under-performing” 
companies.  A factor is applied to the under-performing company for each quarter to project additional defaults 
and deferrals to be factored into the cash flow model. Three internal scenarios were developed that had 
different assumptions regarding the impact of the economic environment on additional defaults and deferrals 
for the upcoming quarters.  On average, the additional deferrals for a specific CDO that were factored in to our 
calculation were approximately 6% of the performing balance of the instrument across the three scenarios.   
All of the additional deferrals for the three scenarios are factored in to the cash flow for each tranche.  A 
discount factor to be applied to the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) was developed for each specific 
tranche and incorporated to arrive at the discount rate for the CDO.  The factor applied ranges from 100 basis 
points to 600 basis points based on the rating of the CDO and its gross-up factor for risk based capital.  These 
rates were applied to calculate the net present value of the cash flows.  The results of the three net present 
value calculations were weighted based on their likelihood of occurring.  The scenarios were weighted 35%, 
47% and 18%.    

Finally, an independent valuation of our portfolio was obtained.  This was weighted as the final overall step to 
arrive at our valuation for December 31, 2012 and 2011 using 55% for the internal weighting and 45% for the 
external one.  Due to market conditions as well as the limited trading activity of these securities, the market 
value of the securities is highly sensitive to assumption changes and market volatility.
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Note 4.  Fair Value (Continued) 

At December 31, 2012, the Company held five pooled trust preferred CDOs with an amortized cost of $7.5 
million.  These securities were rated high quality (A3 and above) at inception, but at December 31, 2012, these 
securities were rated as Ba2 and Ca, which are defined as highly speculative and/or default, with some 
recovery; and C, which is the lowest rating.  The issuers in these securities are primarily banks, but some of the 
pools do include a limited number of insurance companies.   

The Company performed an analysis including evaluation for OTTI for each of the CDOs.  During full-year 
2012, our model indicated no OTTI on any of the CDOs.  Management has determined that the CDOs are 
deemed to be only temporarily impaired at year-end due to the projected cash flows adjusted for the possible 
further deterioration is sufficient to return the outstanding principal balance with interest at the stated rate.  

Private Label CMOs.  Private label CMOs were also evaluated using management’s internal analysis process.  
These securities were rated high quality (A3 and above) at inception and are primarily supported by prime 
collateral, although the RAST Series security has some alt-a collateral support.  During full-year 2012, our 
model indicated no OTTI on any of the CMOs, with an aggregate cost basis of $0.8 million.  

Single Issue Trust Preferred.  In 2010 the Company purchased single-issue trust preferred securities that are 
classified as available for sale.  At December 31, 2012, the Company still held $2.1 million of these securities.  
With respect to these securities, the Company looks at rating agency actions, payment history, the capital 
levels of the banks and the financial performance as filed in regulatory reports.   

The Company’s unrealized losses on other securities relate primarily to its investment in CDO securities. The 
decline in fair value is primarily attributable to temporary illiquidity and the financial crisis affecting these 
markets and not necessarily the expected cash flows of the individual securities. Due to the illiquidity in the 
market, it is unlikely that the Company would be able to recover its investment in these securities if the 
Company sold the securities at this time.  The Company does not intend to sell these securities nor is it more 
likely than not the Company will be required to sell these securities before its anticipated recovery. 

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis  

The following table summarizes, by measurement hierarchy, the various assets and liabilities of the Company 
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:  

   

   Quoted Prices in Significant   Significant 
   Active Markets Other   Unobservable 
  Carrying For Identical Observable   Inputs 

  Amount  (Level 1)  (Level 2)   (Level 3) 
December 31, 2012 

U.S. government agencies $  6,797  $  -  $  6,797  $  -
State and political subdivisions  14,685  -  14,685  -
U.S. government agency residential            

mortgage-backed securities  137,422  -  137,422  -
Collateralized mortgage obligations:            

Agency  20,121  -  20,121  -
Private Label   861    -    -    861

Equities  2,731  -  2,731  -
Collateralized debt obligations:            

Single Issue  2,064  -  2,064  -
Pooled   7,744    -    -    7,744

Corporate  2,010  -  2,010  -
Available-for-sale securities $ 194,435 $ - $ 185,830  $ 8,605
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Note 4.  Fair Value (Continued) 
   

   Quoted Prices in Significant   Significant 
   Active Markets Other   Unobservable 
  Carrying For Identical Observable   Inputs 

  Amount  (Level 1)  (Level 2)   (Level 3) 
December 31, 2011 

U.S. government agencies $  3,019  $  -  $  3,019  $  -
State and political subdivisions  18,125  -  18,125  -
U.S. government agency residential            

mortgage-backed securities  177,539  -  177,539  -
Collateralized mortgage obligations:            

Agency  15,527  -  15,527  -
Private Label   1,550    -    -    1,550

Equities  2,530  -  2,530  -
Collateralized debt obligations:            

Single Issue  2,064  -  2,064  -
Pooled   6,600    -    -    6,600

Corporate  1,882  -  1,882  -
Available-for-sale securities $ 228,836 $ - $ 220,686  $ 8,150

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis Using Significant Unobservable Inputs 

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balances of the assets of the Company that are 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs. There currently are no 
liabilities of the Company that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable 
inputs. 

   

 Securities Available for Sale 
 2012 2011 
 CDOs CMOs CDOs  CMOs 
Beginning balance, January 1 $  6,600 $  1,550 $  4,422 $  4,936
          
Transfers into Level 3  -  -  -  -
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized)         

Security impairment  -  -  (499)  -
Payments received   (658)   (656)   26    (3,461)
Other changes in fair value  -  1  -  3

Included in other comprehensive income   1,802   (34)   2,651    72
Ending Balance, December 31 $ 7,744 $ 861 $  6,600 $ 1,550

The following table presents quantitative information about recurring Level 3 fair value measurements at 
December 31, 2012. 

Fair 
Value Valuation Technique  Unobservable Inputs  

Range
(Weighted Average)

Collateralized mortgage obligations $  861 Collateral coverage Projected loss 0.5% - 7%  (5%) 
      Coverage ratio  5% - 5%  (5%) 

Collateralized debt obligations $  7,744  Discounted cash flow Collateral default rate  2% - 10%  (6%) 
Discount rate 1% - 6%  (3%) 
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Note 4.  Fair Value (Continued) 

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis 

The following table summarizes, by measurement hierarchy, financial assets of the Company that are 
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. 

   

  Quoted Prices in Significant  Significant 
  Active Markets Other  Unobservable
 Carrying For Identical Assets Observable Inputs  Inputs 
 Amount (Level 1) (Level 2)  (Level 3) 

December 31, 2012 
Impaired loans          

Commercial 
Closed end $  1,953 $  - $  -  $  1,953
Line of credit  573  -  -  573

Agricultural & AGRE   -   -   -    -
CRE - construction, land & development  7,345  -  -  7,345
CRE - all other          

Owner occupied  6,328  -  -  6,328
Non-owner occupied   7,109   -   -    7,109

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien   6,431   -   -    6,431
Junior lien & lines of credit  61  -  -  61

Consumer   -   -   -    -
OREO property 

Commercial          
Closed end $  - $  - $  - $  -
Line of credit   -   -   -    -

Agricultural & AGRE  261  -  -  261
CRE - construction, land & development   7,653   -   -    7,653
CRE - all other 

Owner occupied   2,070   -   -    2,070
Non-owner occupied  3,688  -  -  3,688

1-4 family residential          
Senior lien  89  -  -  89
Junior lien & lines of credit   -   -   -    -

Consumer  -  -  -  -
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Note 4.  Fair Value (Continued) 
   

  Quoted Prices in Significant  Significant 
  Active Markets Other  Unobservable
 Carrying For Identical Assets Observable Inputs  Inputs 
 Amount (Level 1) (Level 2)  (Level 3) 

December 31, 2011 
Impaired loans          

Commercial 
Closed end $  764 $  - $  -  $  764
Line of credit  911  -  -  911

Agricultural & AGRE   -   -   -    -
CRE - construction, land & development  17,381  -  -  17,381
CRE - all other          

Owner occupied  11,173  -  -  11,173
Non-owner occupied   7,270   -   -    7,270

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien   7,005   -   -    7,005
Junior lien & lines of credit  175  -  -  175

Consumer   1   -   -    1
OREO property 

Commercial          
Closed end $  - $  - $  - $  -
Line of credit   -   -   -    -

Agricultural & AGRE  261  -  -  261
CRE - construction, land & development   3,312   -   -    3,312
CRE - all other 

Owner occupied   4,082   -   -    4,082
Non-owner occupied  829  -  -  829

1-4 family residential          
Senior lien  285  -  -  285
Junior lien & lines of credit   81   -   -    81

Consumer  -  -  -  -

At the time a loan is considered impaired, it is valued at the lower of cost or fair value.  Impaired loans carried 
at fair value generally receive specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses.  For collateral dependent 
loans, fair value is commonly based on recent real estate appraisals. These appraisals may utilize a single 
valuation approach or a combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach.  

Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent appraisers to adjust for differences 
between the comparable sales and income data available. Such adjustments are usually significant and 
typically result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value.  Non-real estate collateral 
may be valued using an appraisal, net book value per the borrower’s financial statements, or aging reports, 
adjusted or discounted based on management’s historical knowledge, changes in market conditions from the 
time of the valuation, and management’s expertise and knowledge of the client and client’s business, resulting 
in a Level 3 fair value classification.  Impaired loans are evaluated on a quarterly basis for additional 
impairment and adjusted accordingly. 

Impaired loans had a carrying amount of $42.7 million with a specific loan loss allocation of $12.9 million in 
2012, resulting in  an additional  provision  for loan losses  of  $9.7 million  for the  year  ended  December 31,  
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Note 4.  Fair Value (Continued) 

2012.  In 2011, impaired loans had a carrying amount of $54.4 million with a valuation allowance of $9.7 
million, resulting in an additional provision for loan losses of $9.8 million for that period.  The majority of our 
impaired loans are collateralized by real estate.  

Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell when 
acquired, establishing a new cost basis.  Any write-downs in the carrying value of a property at the time of 
acquisition are charged against the allowance for loan losses.  These assets are subsequently accounted for at 
lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell. Management periodically reviews the carrying value of 
other real estate owned. Any write-downs of the properties subsequent to acquisition, as well as gains or losses 
on disposition and income or expense from the operations of other real estate owned, are recognized in 
operating results in the period they are realized.  Fair value is commonly based on recent real estate appraisals. 
These appraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches including comparable 
sales and the income approach. Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent 
appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data available. Such adjustments 
are usually significant and typically result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value. 

OREO properties measured at fair value, less costs to sell, had a net carrying amount of $13.8 million which is 
made up of the outstanding balance of $22.6 million, net of a valuation allowance of $8.8 million at December 
31, 2012, resulting in a write-down of $1.6 million for the year. This compares to 2011 when OREO properties 
with a carrying value of $16.6 million were written down to their fair value of $8.8 million, which resulted in a 
charge to earnings of $6.2 million during the year. 

The following table presents quantitative information about Level 3 fair value measurements for financial 
instruments measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2012: 

Fair 
Value Valuation Technique  Unobservable Inputs  

Range
(Weighted Average)

Impaired loans    
Sales comparison 

approach  

Adjustment for 
differences between 

comparable sales 
Commercial 

Closed End $  1,953      20% - 100%  (25%) 
Line of Credit  573 20% - 100%  (25%) 

Agricultural & AGRE   -     20% - 55%  (-%) 
CRE - Construction, land & development  7,345 10% - 55%  (13%) 
CRE - all other        

Owner occupied  6,328 10% - 55%  (35%) 
Non-owner occupied   7,109      10% - 55%  (29%) 

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien   6,431      10% - 50%  (25%) 
Junior lien & lines of credit  61 20% - 100%  (29%) 

Consumer   -     0% - 60%  (-%) 
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Note 4.  Fair Value (Continued) 

Fair 
Value Valuation Technique  Unobservable Inputs  

Range
(Weighted Average)

OREO property 
Sales comparison 

approach  

Adjustment for 
differences between 

comparable sales 
Commercial 

Closed End $  -     - 
Line of Credit  - -

Agricultural & AGRE   261      21%  (21%) 
CRE - Construction, land & development  7,653 5% - 50%  (22%) 
CRE - all other        

Owner occupied  2,070 15% - 50%  (26%) 
Non-owner occupied   3,688      5% - 50%  (27%) 

1-4 family residential 
Senior lien   89      6% - 55%  (27%) 
Junior lien & lines of credit  - -

Consumer   -     - 

The Methods and Assumptions Used to Estimate Fair Value 

The carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and due from banks, federal funds sold, short-term 
borrowings, accrued interest receivable and payable, demand deposits, short-term debt, and variable rate loans 
or deposits that reprice frequently and fully.  Security fair values are based on the methods described above.   
The carrying value and fair value of the subordinated debentures issued to capital trusts are estimated using 
market data for similarly risk weighted items to value them.   For fixed rate loans or deposits and for variable 
rate loans or deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits, the fair value is based on discounted cash 
flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk.  Fair values for impaired loans are 
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values.  The fair value of loans held for 
sale is based on market quotes.  The fair value of debt and redeemable stock is based on current rates for 
similar financing.  It was not practicable to determine the fair value of the restricted securities due to 
restrictions placed on its transferability.  The fair value of off-balance-sheet items is based on the current fees 
or cost that would be charged to enter into or terminate such arrangements. 
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Note 4.  Fair Value (Continued) 

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31 are as follows: 
 December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011 
 Carrying Value  Fair Value  Carrying Value  Fair Value 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $  63,271  $  63,271  $  69,735  $  69,735 

Securities  194,435  194,435  228,836  228,836 

Restricted securities  6,934  NA  9,150  NA

Net loans  540,066  532,218  561,163  540,612 

Accrued interest receivable  2,803   2,803   3,123   3,123 

Financial liabilities 

Deposits $  785,337  $  787,572  $  848,638  $  849,141 

Federal funds purchased and  

  securities sold under          

  agreements to repurchase  23,115  23,115  18,036  18,036 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances  20,056    21,195   23,058    24,604 

Notes payable  10,250  10,297  10,440  9,321 

Subordinated debentures  20,620    12,891   20,620    14,023 

Series B mandatorily redeemable 

  preferred stock  268    268   268    268 

Accrued interest payable  4,321  4,321  4,041  4,041 

Other assets and liabilities of the Company that are not defined as financial instruments are not included in the 
above disclosures, such as property and equipment.  In addition, nonfinancial instruments typically not recognized 
in financial statements nevertheless may have value but are not included in the above disclosures.  These include, 
among other items, the estimated earning potential of core deposit accounts, the earnings potential of loan 
servicing rights, the earnings potential of the trust operations, customer goodwill and similar items. 

Note 5.  Loan Sales and Servicing 

Loans held for sale at year end related to our secondary mortgage market activities, located in the “Loans” 
section of our balance sheet, are as follows: 

December 31, 
2012 2011 

Loans held for sale $         1,470 $         1,776 
Less: Allowance to adjust to lower of cost or fair value                    -                    - 
Loans held for sale $         1,470 $         1,776 

The following summarizes the secondary mortgage market activities: 

 Years Ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans $      93,446 $      54,744 
   
Gain on sales of mortgage loans $        2,312 $        1,027 
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Note 5.  Loan Sales and Servicing (Continued) 

Following is an analysis of the changes in originated mortgage servicing rights: 

 Years Ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 
Balance at beginning of year $ 2,089 $ 2,425 
Originated mortgage servicing rights  569  277 
Mortgage servicing valuation allowance  -  (89) 
Amortization  (638)  (524) 
Balance at end of year $ 2,020 $ 2,089 

Management periodically evaluates assets for impairment.  For purposes of measuring impairment, servicing 
assets are stratified by loan type.  Impairment is recognized if the carrying value of servicing assets exceeds the 
fair value of the stratum.  The fair value of capitalized mortgage servicing rights was $2.4 million and $2.3 
million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.   Fair value was determined using discount rates ranging  
from 11.00% to 17.00% and prepayment speeds ranging from 12.57% to 17.63% depending on the 
stratification of the specific right in 2012.  The discount rates used in 2011 ranged from 9.50% to 15.50% and 
the prepayment speeds used were between 16.29% and 19.46%. 

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years is as follows: 

2013 $    465 

2014 435 

2015 395 

2016 350 

2017 305 

During 2012 and 2011 the Bank was required to repurchase certain loans previously sold to an investor.  
Losses incurred on these repurchases were $0.2 million and $0.3 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.  At 
December 31, 2012 management believes any recourse obligation to be immaterial.  

Note 6. Premises and Equipment 

Premises and equipment consisted of: 

December 31, 
2012 2011

Land $         9,050 $         9,015 
Buildings 19,710 19,666 
Furniture and equipment 11,735 11,297 
Construction in process               192                    - 

        40,687         39,978 
Less accumulated depreciation          17,552          16,224 

$       23,135 $       23,754 

Depreciation expense on premises and equipment totaled $1.3 million in 2012 and $1.8 million in 2011.  

On November 18, 2011, the Company completed the sale of its Champaign branch to Marine Bank headquartered 
in Springfield, Illinois.  The transaction reduced premise and equipment by $0.4 million and generated a net gain 
on sale of $1.3 million.  Marine Bank assumed approximately $23.5 million in deposits and acquired $10.3 million 
in loans.  
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Note 7.  Participation in the Treasury Capital Purchase Program 

On January 9, 2009, as part of the Troubled Asset Relief Program (“TARP”) Capital Purchase Program, the 
Company entered into a Letter Agreement and Securities Purchase Agreement (collectively, the “Purchase 
Agreement”) with the United States Department of the Treasury (“U.S. Treasury”), pursuant to which the 
Company sold 32,668 shares of newly authorized Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series C,  
par value $1.00 per share and liquidation value $1,000 per share (the “Series C Preferred Stock”) and also 
issued warrants (the “Warrants”) to the U.S. Treasury to acquire an additional 508,320 shares of the 
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $9.64 per share. 

The Series C Preferred Stock qualifies as Tier 1 capital and will pay cumulative dividends at a rate of 5% per 
annum for the first five years, and 9% per annum effective January 9, 2014 and thereafter. The Series C 
Preferred Stock may be redeemed by the Company at any time subject to consultation with the Federal 
Reserve.  The Series C Preferred Stock is not subject to any contractual restrictions on transfer.  

Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the ability of the Company to declare or pay dividends or 
distributions on, or purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire for consideration, shares of its Common Stock will 
be subject to restrictions, including a restriction against increasing dividends from the last quarterly cash 
dividend per share ($0.14) declared on the Common Stock prior to October 28, 2008.  The redemption, 
purchase or other acquisition of trust preferred securities of the Company or its affiliates also will be restricted.  
These restrictions will terminate on the earlier of (a) the third anniversary of the date of issuance of the 
Preferred Stock and (b) the date on which the Preferred Stock has been redeemed in whole or the U.S. 
Treasury has transferred all of the Preferred Stock to third parties. 

The Purchase Agreement also subjects the Company to certain of the executive compensation limitations 
included in the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the “EESA”). In this connection, as a 
condition to the closing of the transaction, the Company’s Senior Executive Officers (as defined in the 
Purchase Agreement) (the “Senior Executive Officers”), (i) voluntarily waived any claim against the U.S. 
Treasury or the Company for any changes to such officer’s compensation or benefits that are required to 
comply with the regulation issued by the U.S. Treasury under the TARP Capital Purchase Program and 
acknowledged that the regulation may require modification of the compensation, bonus, incentive and other 
benefit plans, arrangements and policies and agreements as they relate to the period the U.S. Treasury owns the 
Preferred Stock of the Company; and (ii) entered into a letter with the Company amending the Benefit Plans 
with respect to such Senior Executive Officers as may be necessary, during the period that the Treasury owns 
the Preferred Stock of the Company, as necessary to comply with Section 111(b) of the EESA. 

On August 10, 2009, the Company announced that it would defer scheduled dividend payments on the Series C, 
fixed rate cumulative, perpetual preferred stock.  The Company is accruing the dividends in accordance to GAAP 
and the terms of the program at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the amounts accrued are $6.4 million and $4.6 
million.  The Company may, at its option, with regulatory concurrence, redeem the deferred securities at their 
liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid dividends at any time.   

Both the preferred securities and the warrant are accounted for as components of regulatory Tier 1 capital.  Per 
accounting guidelines, the Company is accreting the discount for this instrument.    

The U.S. Treasury has notified the Company that the preferred securities and the warrant may be placed into 
pooled “Dutch Auctions” after October 9, 2012.
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Note 8.  Intangible Assets 

Acquired intangible assets were as follows as of year-end: 

2012 2011
Gross  Gross  

 Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated 
 Amount Amortization Amount Amortization 
Amortized intangible assets:     

Core deposit intangibles $       14,124 $        10,392 $       14,124 $          9,441 
Missouri charter               581                    -               581                    - 

Total $       14,705 $        10,392 $       14,705 $          9,441 
     

Aggregate amortization expense was $1.0 million and $1.0 million for 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Estimated amortization expense for subsequent years is as follows: 

2013 $    951 
2014 951 
2015 951 
2016 879 
Thereafter -

Note 9.  Deposits 

Time certificates of deposit in denominations of $100 or more were $84.8 million and $166.6 million at year-
end 2012 and 2011. 

At December 31, 2012, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: 

Year Amount 
2013 $    188,155 
2014 94,445
2015 31,436 
2016 1,383 
2017 3,043 
Thereafter                 - 

$   318,462 

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, brokered deposits account for $35.6 million and $69.6 million, respectively. 

Deposits from principal officers, directors and their affiliates at both year end 2012 and 2011 was $1.4 million.  

Note 10.  Subordinated Debentures

The Company has two $10.0 million trust preferred issuances that were issued in April 2004 and April 2007 in 
cumulative trust preferred securities through special-purpose trusts Centrue Statutory Trust II (Trust II) and 
Centrue Statutory Trust III (Trust III). The proceeds of the offerings were invested by the trusts in junior 
subordinated deferrable interest debentures of Trust II and Trust III totaling $20.6 million. Trust II and Trust III are 
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and their sole assets are the junior subordinated deferrable interest 
debentures.

Distributions are cumulative and are payable quarterly at a variable rate of 2.65% over the LIBOR rate of 0.308% 
for Trust II and a variable rate of 1.65% over the LIBOR rate of 0.36025% for Trust III, respectively, (at a rate of 
2.96% and 2.01% at December 31, 2012) per annum of the stated liquidation amount of $1,000 per preferred 
security. The interest rate for the Trust III debentures was fixed for five years and then transitions to a variable rate 
as stated above in July of 2012.  Interest expense on the trust preferred securities was $0.9 million and $1.1 million  
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Note 10.  Subordinated Debentures (Continued) 

for each of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.  During the third quarter of 2009, the Company began 
deferring the interest payments on these instruments. The permitted five year default period will expire in the third 
quarter of 2014. If all deferred payments and accrued interest are not paid by the third quarter of 2014, the 
Company will be in default of these debentures. All interest is accrued as of December 31, 2012.  At December 31, 
2012 and 2011, the amounts accrued are $3.6 million and $2.7 million.  The obligations of the trust are fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed, on a subordinated basis, by the Company. 

The trust preferred securities for the Trust II are redeemable upon the maturity of the debentures on April 22, 2034, 
or to the extent of any earlier redemption of any debentures by the Company, and are callable beginning April 22, 
2009.  The trust preferred securities for Trust III are redeemable upon the maturity of the debentures on April 19, 
2037, or to the extent of any earlier redemption of any debentures by the Company, and are callable beginning 
April 19, 2012.  Holders of the capital securities have no voting rights, are unsecured, and rank junior in priority of 
payment to all of the Company’s indebtedness and senior to the Company’s capital stock.  For regulatory purposes, 
the trust preferred securities qualify as Tier 1 capital subject to certain provisions.  

In accordance with accounting guidelines, the trusts are not consolidated with the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements, but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as a liability and the Company’s investment 
in the common stock for the trusts of $0.6 million is included in other assets. 

Note 11. Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are financing arrangements that generally mature within 90 
days.  Repurchase agreements are secured by U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency securities and, if required, are 
held in third party pledge accounts. At maturity, the securities underlying the agreements are returned to the 
Company.  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are secured by mortgage-backed securities with a 
carrying value of $23.1 million and $18.0 million at year-end 2012 and 2011. The securities underlying the 
agreements remain in the respective asset accounts. As of December 31, 2012, the Company did not have 
amounts at risk under repurchase agreements with any individual counterparty or group of counterparties that 
exceeded 10% of stockholders’ equity.

Note 12.  Borrowed Funds and Debt Obligations 

At December 31, 2012 no FHLB advances had any call provisions, whereas at December 31, 2011, $5.0 
million of advances had various call provisions.  The Company maintains a collateral pledge agreement 
covering secured advances whereby the Company had $56.4 million collateral credited to the Company by the 
FHLB.  This amount consists of pledged securities of $31.4 million earning us a collateral credit of $30.8 
million. Additionally, the Company has pledged $39.5 million of first mortgage loans on improved residential 
and mixed use farm property free of all other pledges, liens, and encumbrances (not more than 90 days 
delinquent).  The FHLB credits the Company $25.6 million for these.  The Company had no variable rate 
advances at year-end 2012 and 2011. The advances are at fixed rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.61% at year-end 
2012 and 2.15% to 4.61% at year-end 2011. 

The scheduled maturities of advances from the FHLB at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2012 2011
Average  Average  

 Interest  Interest  
Year Rate Amount Rate Amount 
2012             - $                  -           2.15% $          3,000 
2013          4.61% 56        4.61 58 
2014       3.00 15,000        3.00 15,000 
2015             - -             -               - 
2016       4.37 5,000        4.37 5,000 
Thereafter             -             -             -             - 

          3.35% $        20,056            3.19% $        23,058 
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Note 12.  Borrowed Funds and Debt Obligations (Continued)

Notes payable consisted of the following at December 31, 2012 and 2011: 

2012 2011
Term note ($250) from Cole Taylor; interest due quarterly at the 90-day LIBOR 
plus 2.95% with a floor of 6.50%. The balance is due at maturity of March 31, 
2015; secured by 100% of the stock of Centrue Bank.  

   
250 250

Subordinated debt note ($10,000) from Cole Taylor; interest due quarterly at the 
90-day LIBOR plus 2.95%, which was 3.34% at December 31, 2012. The balance 
is due at maturity of March 31, 2015; the debt is unsecured and intended to qualify 
as tier II capital for regulatory purposes. 10,000 10,000 

A note to an individual related to a prior acquisition. The original amount was 
$2,000. The note was entered into on October 23, 2002 and carries an imputed 
interest of 5.25%. The note matured and was paid off on October 24, 2012.                    -               190 

$       10,250 $       10,440 

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has $10.3 million outstanding per a loan agreement dated March 31, 
2008.  This original agreement was entered into with Bank of America and consisted of three credit facilities: a 
secured revolving line of credit, a secured term facility, and a subordinated debt. In February 2009, the loan 
agreement on the revolving line of credit was amended resulting in an aggregate principal amount of $20.3 
million.  The first credit facility consisted of a $10.0 million secured revolving line of credit which matured on 
June 30, 2009 and was not renewed by Bank of America.  The second credit facility consists of a $0.3 million 
secured term facility, which will mature in March 31, 2015.  The third credit facility consists of $10.0 million 
in subordinated debt, which also matures in March 31, 2015.  On December 14, 2009, Bank of America 
transferred to Cole Taylor Bank all rights, title, interest in to and under the loan agreements dated March 31, 
2008.  Repayment of each of the remaining two credit facilities is interest only on a quarterly basis, with the 
principal amount of the loan due at maturity.  The term credit facility is secured by a pledge of the stock of the 
Bank.  The subordinated debt credit facility is unsecured and is intended to qualify as Tier II capital for 
regulatory purposes.  The Company requires regulatory approval in order to make the quarterly interest 
payments under our debt agreements, refer to Note 16. 

On March 7, 2011, the Company entered into an amendment with the lender, which modified the covenant 
relating to capitalization at the parent and bank level so that the Company returned to full compliance with the 
terms of its credit agreement as of December 31, 2010. The amendment contains customary covenants, 
including but not limited to, the Company and the Bank's maintenance of its status as adequately capitalized 
and the Bank’s minimum loan loss reserves to total loans of 3.00%.  As of December 31, 2011, the Company 
was in compliance with all covenants, with the exception of the tier 1 leverage ratio, and all payments remain 
current.  A covenant waiver was received from the lender as of December 31, 2011; the loan covenants were 
revised effective quarter-end March 31, 2012 and each quarter thereafter to maintain the adequately capitalized 
levels for the Bank and remove the holding company capital requirements.  At December 31, 2012 the 
Company was in compliance with all covenants. The parent Company has sufficient cash for the remaining 
interest payments due in 2013.  At December 31, 2012, the Parent Company had available cash and cash 
equivalents totaling $1.1 million.  

Additionally, the Company had a note outstanding from a prior acquisition to an individual with an imputed 
interest rate of 5.25% that matured on October 24, 2012 and final payment was made.  There was no balance 
outstanding as of December 31, 2012 compared to $0.2 million remaining at December 31, 2011. 
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Note 12.  Borrowed Funds and Debt Obligations (Continued) 

Information concerning borrowed funds is as follows:
Years Ended December 31, 

2012 2011
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 

Maximum month-end balance during the year $ 48,057 $ 58,059 
Average balance during the year  29,038  50,355 
Weighted average interest rate for the year  2.55%  2.88% 
Weighted average interest rate at year end  3.35%  3.19% 

Notes Payable 
Maximum month-end balance during the year $ 10,440 $ 10,623 
Average balance during the year  10,358  10,543 
Weighted average interest rate for the year  3.59%  3.43% 
Weighted average interest rate at year end  3.34%  3.50% 

Note 13.  Income Taxes 

Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of: 

 Years Ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 
Federal   

Current $ -  $ -  
Deferred  (2,892)  (5,504) 

 (2,892)  (5,504) 
State   

Current  (2)  1 
Deferred  (476)  (1,356) 

 (478)  (1,355) 
Change in valuation allowance  2,536  5,493 

$ (834) $ (1,366) 
   

The Company's income tax expense differed from the statutory federal rate of 34% as follows: 

 Years Ended December 31, 
 2012 2011 
Expected income taxes $ (1,606) $ (4,059) 
Income tax effect of   

Change in valuation allowance  2,536  5,493 
Interest earned on tax-free investments and loans  (185)  (291) 
Nondeductible interest expense incurred to carry 

tax-free investments and loans  5  15 
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit  (298)  (623) 
Earnings on Bank-owned life insurance and post-

retirement benefits  (458)  (333) 
Stock option expense  9  21 
Nondeductible meals and health club dues  22  19 
Intra-period tax allocation  (832)  (1,367) 
Impact of state rate change  -  (224) 
Other  (27)  (17) 

$ (834) $ (1,366) 
   

The calculation for the income tax benefit generally does not consider the tax effects of changes in other 
comprehensive income, or OCI, which is a component of shareholders’ equity on the balance sheet.  However, an 
exception is provided in certain circumstances, such  as when there is  a full valuation allowance  against net 
deferred  tax assets,  there  is a loss from  continuing  operations and  income in  other components  of the financial  
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Note 13.  Income Taxes (Continued)

statements.  In such a case, pre-tax income from other categories, such as changes in OCI, must be considered in 
determining a tax benefit to be allocated to the loss from continuing operations. For 2012 and 2011, this resulted in 
$832 and $1,367 of income tax benefit allocated to continuing operations. 

The significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities consisted of: 

December 31, 
2012 2011 

Deferred tax assets   
Allowance for loan losses $ 7,368 $ 8,239 
Other-than-temporary impairment on securities  8,010  8,095 
Deferred compensation, other  115  123 
Stock based expense   130  130 
Net operating loss carryforwards  21,799  19,388 
Deferred tax credits  695  695 
OREO valuation allowance  3,425  3,020 
Donation carryforward  364  353 
Other  108  228 
Total deferred tax assets  42,014  40,271 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Depreciation $ (32) $ (63) 
Adjustments arising from acquisitions  (1,274)  (1,467) 
Mortgage servicing rights  (785)  (810) 
Securities available-for-sale  (1,691)  (859) 
Federal Home Loan Bank dividend received in stock  (555)  (786) 
Deferred loan fees & costs  (357)  (378) 
Prepaid expenses  (67)  (359) 
Total deferred tax liabilities  (4,761)  (4,722) 
Valuation allowance  (37,253)  (35,549) 

Net deferred tax assets $ - $ - 
   

In accordance with current income tax accounting guidance, the Company assessed whether a valuation 
allowance should be established against their deferred tax assets (DTAs) based on consideration of all 
available evidence using a “more likely than not” standard. The most significant portions of the deductible 
temporary differences relate to (1) the allowance for loan losses and (2) fair value adjustments or impairment 
write-downs related to securities.   

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, both the positive and negative evidence about the realization 
of DTAs were evaluated. The ultimate realization of DTAs is based on the Company’s ability to carryback net 
operating  losses to  prior tax  periods, tax  planning  strategies that  are  prudent and  feasible,  the  reversal  of 
deductible temporary differences that can be offset by taxable temporary differences and future taxable 
income.  

After evaluating all of the factors previously summarized and considering the weight of the positive evidence 
compared to the negative evidence, the Company has determined a full valuation adjustment was necessary as 
of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.  A three year cumulative loss position and continued near-term 
losses represent negative evidence that cannot be overcome with future taxable income.  

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, federal net operating loss carry forwards includes $3.6 million related to the 
Illinois Community Bancorp Inc. acquisition.  The federal NOL carry forward expires in 2020 thru 2024, and 
can be used at a rate of $0.16 million per year based on Section 382 limitations. For any amounts that cannot 
be used, a valuation account is created. The valuation allowance of $0.4 million was established since some of 
the NOL cannot  be used  before they  expire.  The rest of the  federal NOL carry forward  represents  losses of  
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Note 13.  Income Taxes (Continued) 

$24.4 million, $20.1 million and $6.2 million generated in 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively, which will begin 
to expire in 2030.  At December 31, 2012, net operating loss carry forwards also includes $11.1 million, $25.5 
million, $14.9 million and $4.5 million in State of Illinois loss carry forwards generated in 2009, 2010, 2011 
and 2012, respectively, that have a twelve year carry forward period. New tax laws in Illinois have deferred 
carry forwards for the years 2011 through 2013; therefore, they will begin to expire after 2024. 

The Company does not have any material uncertain tax positions or unrecognized tax benefits for additional 
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. The Company does not expect the total amount of 
unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease in the next twelve months.  

The deferred tax credits represent $0.7 million in Alternative Minimum Tax credit carry forwards generated in 
2007 and 2008.  These credits can be carried forward indefinitely.  In addition, the donation carry forwards of 
$0.4 million, $0.5 million, $0.03 million and $0.03 million generated in 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, 
respectively, will expire in five years if unused. 

During 2012, no interest or penalties were recorded in the income statement. In 2011 the amounts were 
immaterial.  There were no amounts accrued for interest and penalties at December 31, 2012 and 2011. 

Note 14.  Benefit Plans 

The Company has a 401(k) salary reduction plan (the 401(k) plan) covering substantially all 
employees.  Eligible employees may elect to make tax deferred contributions up to annual IRS contribution 
limits subject to the results of plan testing.   In 2012 and 2011, no Company contributions were made to the 
plan.   

The Company also entered into certain non-qualified deferred compensation agreements with members of the 
senior management team and other select individuals deemed to meet the criteria of “top hat” plan 
participants.   

The Company may make discretionary matching contributions with a respect to a portion of the participant’s 
deferral.  Additionally, the Company continues its non-qualified deferred compensation plan for the 
directors.  These agreements, which are subject to the rules of Internal Revenue Code Section 409A, relate to 
the voluntary deferral of compensation received.  The accrued liability as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 was 
$0.04 million and $0.05 million respectively.  There was no Company match for the employee deferred 
compensation plan in 2012 and 2011.  In 2012, an executive that left the Company took his deferred 
compensation balance in cash in the amount of $15,377.  During 2011, there were distributions of 15,036 
shares for an executive that left the Company and took his deferred compensation balance in shares.  

Note 15.  Share Based Compensation 

In April 2003, the Company adopted the 2003 Option Plan.  Under the 2003 Option Plan, as amended on April 
24, 2007, nonqualified options, incentive stock options, restricted stock and/or stock appreciation rights may 
be granted to employees and outside directors of the Company and its subsidiaries to purchase the Company's 
common stock at an exercise price to be determined by the executive and compensation committee.  Pursuant 
to the 2003 Option Plan, 570,000 shares of the Company's unissued common stock have been reserved and are 
available for issuance upon the exercise of options and rights granted under the 2003 Option Plan.  The options 
have an exercise period of seven to ten years from the date of grant.  There are 66,000 shares available to grant 
under this plan. 

The compensation cost that has been charged against income for the stock options portion of the Equity 
Incentive Plan was $0.03 million and $0.07 million for 2012 and 2011.  

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a closed form option valuation 
(Black-Scholes) model  that uses the  assumptions noted in the table below.  Expected volatilities  are based on  
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Note 15.  Share Based Compensation (Continued) 

historical volatilities of the Company’s common stock.  The Company uses historical data to estimate option 
exercise and post-vesting termination behavior.  (Employee and management options are tracked separately.)   

The expected term of options granted is based on historical data and represents the period of time that options 
granted are expected to be outstanding, which takes into account that the options are not transferable.  The 
risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at 
the time of the grant. There were no options granted in 2012 and 2011. 

A status summary of the option plan for 2012 is presented below: 

  December 31, 2012 

  Options  

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price  

Weighted-
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual Life  

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2012  328,438 $  16.17 

Granted    -   -      

Exercised  -  -

Forfeited    (84,438)   15.80       

Outstanding at end of period  244,000 $  16.29 2.5 years $  -

Vested or expected to vest    243,051  $  16.31   2.5 years  $  -

Options exercisable at period end  222,900 $  16.68 2.4 years $  -

Options outstanding at year-end 2012 were as follows: 

  Outstanding  Exercisable 

Range of Exercise Prices  Number  

Weighted-
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual Life Number  

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price 

December 31, 2012: 

$   5.24       -     $   13.00    66,000   3.2 years    51,600  $  7.08 

   13.88       -          18.63  69,500 2.0 years  62,800  17.94 

   19.03       -          23.31    108,500   2.3 years    108,500    20.52 

 244,000 2.5 years  222,900 $  16.68 

As of December 31, 2012, there was $0.02 million total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested 
stock options granted under the 2003 Option Plan.  This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average 
period of 0.40 years.    

Note 16.  Regulatory Matters

The Company and the Bank (“Regulated Companies”) are subject to various regulatory capital requirements 
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain 
mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary actions by these regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct 
material effect on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Regulated Companies must meet specific capital guidelines 
that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under  
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Note 16.  Regulatory Matters (Continued)

regulatory accounting practices. Their capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments 
by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.  

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Regulated Companies to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted 
assets, and of Tier 1 Capital to average assets. Tier 1 Capital includes common stockholders’ equity, qualifying 
preferred stock and Trust Preferred securities, less goodwill and certain other deductions (including the unrealized 
net gains and losses, after applicable taxes, on available-for-sale securities carried at fair value). Total Capital 
includes Tier 1 Capital plus preferred stock not qualifying as Tier 1 Capital, mandatory convertible debt, 
subordinated debt and the allowance for loan and lease losses, subject to limitations by the guidelines.  

As the following table indicates, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company was above adequately-
capitalized minimums for regulatory capital purposes except for the Tier 1 leverage ratio in both 2012 and 2011, 
which was 3.4% and 3.7% respectively.  

For the Bank, there are five levels of capital defined by the regulations: “well-capitalized”, “adequately 
capitalized”, “undercapitalized”, “significantly undercapitalized” and “critically undercapitalized”. At December 
31, 2012 and 2011, the Bank was considered “well capitalized”.    

    

    

 Actual 
To Be Adequately 

Capitalized  

To Be Well 
Capitalized Under 
Prompt Corrective 

i i i Amount Ratio Amount Ratio  Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2012 

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)              
Centrue Financial $  53,547  8.3 % $  51,926  8.0 % N/A N/A
Centrue Bank   66,715  10.4    51,288  8.0     64,109  10.0  

Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets) 
Centrue Financial $  30,200  4.7  $  25,963  4.0    N/A N/A 
Centrue Bank  58,566  9.1  25,644  4.0  38,466  6.0

Tier I leverage ratio (to average assets)              
Centrue Financial $  30,200  3.4 $  35,682  4.0 N/A N/A
Centrue Bank   58,566  6.6    35,589  4.0     44,487  5.0  

    

    

 Actual 
To Be Adequately 

Capitalized  

To Be Well 
Capitalized Under 
Prompt Corrective 
A i P i i Amount Ratio Amount Ratio  Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2011 
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)              

Centrue Financial $  61,151  9.0 % $  54,184  8.0 % N/A N/A
Centrue Bank   68,637  10.3    53,409  8.0     66,762  10.0  

Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets) 
Centrue Financial $  37,194  5.5  $  27,092  4.0    N/A N/A 
Centrue Bank  60,133  9.0  26,705  4.0  40,057  6.0

Tier I leverage ratio (to average assets)              
Centrue Financial $  37,194  3.7 $  39,768  4.0 N/A N/A
Centrue Bank   60,133  6.1    39,681  4.0     49,602  5.0  
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Note 16.  Regulatory Matters (Continued)

On December 18, 2009, the Company and Bank entered into an Agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of 
Chicago (“FRB”) and the Illinois Department of Financial & Professional Regulation (“IDFPR”). The Agreement 
describes commitments made by the Bank to address and strengthen banking practices relating to credit risk 
management practices; improving loan underwriting and loan administration; improving asset quality by 
enhancing the Bank’s position on problem loans through repayment, additional collateral or other means; 
reviewing and revising as necessary the Bank’s allowance for loan and lease losses policy; maintaining sufficient 
capital at the Bank, implementing an earnings plan and comprehensive budget to improve and sustain the Bank’s 
earnings; and improving the Bank’s liquidity position and funds management practices. The Bank has 
implemented enhancements to its processes to address the matters identified by the FRB and the IDFPR. The 
Company is in compliance with all the requirements specified in the agreement except for the Capital Plan. 
Management continues to develop and execute on the capital plan. In the meantime, the Agreement results in the 
Bank’s ineligibility for certain actions and expedited approvals without the prior written consent and approval of 
the FRB and the IDFPR.  These actions include, among other things, the payment of dividends by the Bank to the 
Company, the Company cannot pay dividends on its common or preferred shares, payments of interest or principal 
on subordinated debentures, note payable to Cole Taylor, and Trust Preferred securities, the Company may not 
increase its debt level and the Company cannot redeem or purchase any shares of its stock.   

The Company has incurred net losses of $3.9 million and $10.6 million during 2012 and 2011 due to the downturn 
in the economy.  Some of the factors contributing to the losses include, reduced net interest income, loan losses, 
security OTTI and OREO related expenses.  The Company is subject to ongoing monitoring by its regulatory 
agencies and requires regulatory approval in order to make the quarterly interest payments to Cole Taylor under 
our debt agreements.  Management has sufficient cash at the parent Company for the remaining interest payments 
due in 2013.  Should the Company and/or its bank subsidiary capital levels fall below “adequately capitalized”, 
regulatory actions may be taken including requiring us to have higher capital requirements than those required by 
Prompt Corrective Action regulations.  Since September 2011, the Company had its Tier 1 leverage ratio fall 
below the “adequately-capitalized” threshold for that ratio. The Bank was “well-capitalized” at the end of 2012 and 
2011. Management is not aware of any further regulatory actions at this time. 

Note 17.  Commitments, Contingencies, and Credit Risk 

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into a variety of financial instruments with off-balance sheet 
risk to meet the financing needs of its customers, to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and to 
conduct lending activities. These instruments principally include commitments to extend credit and standby letters 
of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the 
amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent 
credit risk are as follows: 

 Standby    Range of Rates 
 Letters Variable Rate Fixed Rate Total On Fixed Rate 
 of Credit Commitments Commitments Commitments Commitments 

Commitments       
December 31, 2012 $     2,089 $    73,121  $     31,819 $        107,029 2.70% - 18.00% 
December 31, 2011 $     2,276 $    83,336 $     24,231 $        109,843 3.22% - 18.00% 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract.  Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination 
clauses and may require payment of a fee.   Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being 
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.  For 
commitments to extend credit, the Bank evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.  The 
amount of collateral obtained is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer.  Collateral held varies, 
but may include accounts receivable; inventory; property, plant, and equipment; and income producing 
commercial properties. 
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Note 17.  Commitments, Contingencies, and Credit Risk (Continued)

In the event of a customer’s nonperformance, the Company’s credit loss exposure is equal to the contractual 
amount of those commitments. The credit risk is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to 
customers and is subject to normal credit policies. The Company uses the same credit policies in making credit 
commitments as it does for on-balance sheet instruments, with such exposure to credit loss minimized due to 
various collateral requirements in place.

Unsecured standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance 
of a customer to a third party.  The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as 
that involved in extending loan commitments to customers.   

The Company leases certain branch properties under operating leases.  Rent expense was $0.3 million each year 
for 2012 and 2011.  Rent commitments, before considering renewal options that generally are present, were as 
follows: 

2013 $           259 
2014 260 
2015 260 
2016 260 
2017 260 
Thereafter              260   
Total $        1,559 
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